
 
 

 

UMGSA Council Meeting Documents Index Page 
Wednesday, November 28th, 2018 - 5:30 PM - UMGSA Lounge 

 

Index Page for the November 28, 2018, UMGSA Council Meeting Documents ......................1 

Agenda for the November 28, 2018, UMGSA Council Meeting ................................................2 

Appendix I  Minutes of the October 24, 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting ............ Separate 

Attachment 

Appendix II  October Committee Reports ..............................................................................4 

Appendix III  October HSGSA Report .....................................................................................6 

Appendix IV October Senate Report .......................................................................................7 

Appendix V  October Executive Reports ..............................................................................10 

Appendix VI  Amendments to the 2018-19 UMGSA Budget ................................................20 

Appendix VII  Executive Summary for the Aggregation of UMGSA Policy Manuals ........24 

Appendix VIII  Proposed UMGSA Governance and Operations Manual .............................29 

 

 

 

  



2 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

UMGSA Council Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, November 28th, 2018 - 5:30 PM - UMGSA Lounge 

 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Traditional Territories Acknowledgement 

The University of Manitoba campuses are located on original lands of the Anishinaabeg, 

Cree, Oji-Cree, Dakota, and Dene peoples, and on the homeland of the Métis Nation. We 

respect the Treaties that were made on these territories, we acknowledge the harms and 

mistakes of the past, and we dedicate ourselves to move forward in partnership with 

Indigenous communities in a spirit of reconciliation and collaboration. 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda  

Note: Agenda Items for Concurrence Without Debate 

Any item that has a  beside it denotes an item intended for Concurrence Without Debate. 

These items include reports and other routine matters, and are considered accepted or 

adopted by the UMGSA Council without debate or a vote. Any Council Member who 

wishes to remove any item so-noted from the list of items for Concurrence Without Debate 

may do so by contacting the Council Chairperson prior to the meeting, or by requesting that 

it be removed when the Chair asks if there is any opposition to accepting these items for 

Concurrence Without Debate, immediately prior to the motion to approve the agenda as 

presented or as amended. 

MOTION: BIRT the UMGSA Council approves the agenda for the November 28th, 

2018, UMGSA Council Meeting as presented. 
 

4. Approval of the Minutes 

The minutes of the October 24th, 2018, UMGSA Council Meeting are included as Appendix 

I to this Council meeting agenda. 

MOTION: BIRT the UMGSA Council approves the minutes from the October 24th, 

2018, UMGSA Council Meeting as presented. 
 

5. Committee Reports  

5.1.  October Committee Reports (Appendix II) 
 

6. HSGSA Report 

6.1.  October HSGSA Report (Appendix III) 
 

7. Senate Report 

7.1. October Senate Report (Appendix IV) 
 

8. Executive Reports  

8.1.  October Executive Reports (Appendix V) 
 

9. Departmental Reports 
 

10. Unfinished Business 

None. 
 
 



3 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

11. New Business 

11.1. Amendments to the 2018-19 UMGSA Budget: A few lines in the UMGSA Budget 

need to be increased to meet revised spending expectations.  In particular, demand for 

Conference Grants has been much higher than anticipated.  Some other expense lines 

have been cut to support the reallocation of funds within the budget.  Estimates have 

also been updated to reflect a slightly higher than anticipated number of graduate 

students registered at the University.  The version of the budget passed in May, the 

proposed version of the budget, as well as our current year-to-date revenues and 

expenses, are all presented in Appendix VI to the Council Meeting agenda. 

BIRT the UMGSA Council approves the amendments to the 2018-19 UMGSA 

Budget as presented. 

Moved by the Executive Committee. 

11.2. Aggregation of UMGSA Policy Manuals: The amalgamation of most of our existing 

policy and procedure manuals has been an ongoing project during this executive term.  

The primary purposes behind this amalgamation are to improve consistency, reduce 

redundancy, and provide greater clarity to our policies.  This amalgamation also 

includes changes which reflect proposed amendments to the UMGSA Bylaws.  The 

amendments to the Bylaws will be discussed and voted-on at our Annual General 

Meeting, exactly one week after this November Council meeting.  This has been timed 

to minimize the transition period between our current governance documents, and the 

proposed versions of those documents.  The updates which are approved at this 

meeting will not take effect until the UMGSA Bylaws are updated at the Annual 

General Meeting (AGM).  If any amendments are made to the Bylaws at the AGM 

which will require amendments to the amalgamation of our policies approved at this 

meeting, then further changes will be presented for approval at the January 2019 

UMGSA Council meeting.  As is also the case with the update to the Bylaws, all 

currently-defined executive roles will remain in place until the end of the current 

executive term at the end of April, 2019.  The proposed UMGSA Governance and 

Operations Manual is presented in full as Appendix VIII to the Council Meeting 

agenda, and an executive summary of the proposed changes is also included as 

Appendix VII.  All current versions of our UMGSA Policy and Procedure Manuals are 

freely available on the UMGSA website, umgsa.org, as well as on paper in the 

UMGSA Office. 

BIRT the UMGSA Council approves the amalgamation of all UMGSA Policy and 

Procedure Manuals, excluding the UMGSA Election and Referendum Manual, 

into the new UMGSA Governance and Operations Manual, including all edits as 

presented.  These changes will not come into effect until the proposed changes to 

the UMGSA Bylaws are voted-on at the UMGSA AGM on December 5, 2018.  

Current executive roles will remain in place until the end of the current executive 

term. 

Moved by the Bylaws and Policy Committee. 
 

12. Announcements 

12.1. Next Council Meeting: Wednesday, January 23, 2018 - 5:30PM - UMGSA Lounge 

12.2. Next UMGSA AGM: Wednesday, December 5, 2018 - 5:30PM - UMGSA Lounge 
 

13. Adjournment 



4 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix II : 
 

UMGSA Committee Reports 
October 1st – 31st, 2018 

 

Executive Committee 
 

Chair: Carl Neumann (UMGSA President) 

Meeting Dates: October 12th and 26th, 2018 
 

• The Executive discussed a final option for a new UMGSA pull-up banner to be used at 

various events, including Orientation. 

• The Executive discussed updates to planning for the AGM, Council Orientation, and the 

Fall Referendum. 

• Proposed updates to the UMGSA Bylaws were discussed. 

• Opportunities to increase Indigenous representation within the UMGSA, as well as in the 

Senate and elsewhere, were discussed. 

 

 

Finance Committee 
 

Chair: Cody A. Ross (UMGSA VPI) 

Meeting Date: October 25th, 2018 
 

• The committee processed conference grant applications. In total, 41 ($18,966.77) 

applications were approved and 6 were temporarily denied as more information was 

requested. 

• The committee processed 1 special project grant < $250. 

• The committee discussed the status of the conference grant budget line – ($138,776.71 of 

$150,000). 

 
 

Bylaws and Policy Committee 
 

Chair: Cody A. Ross (UMGSA VPI) 

Meeting Date: October 18th, 2018 
 

• This month’s meeting was a joint meeting of both UMGSA and HSGSA Bylaws and 

Policy Committees. We held a joint meeting since changes to the Bylaws affecting both 

UMGSA and HSGSA students were being discussed. 

• Many votes were taken to approve proposed changes to the existing Bylaws. 

• An online vote was sent out on October 31st to alter a change that was made in our 

meeting that conflicted with University Senate regulation. 

 

 

  



5 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Events Committee 
 

Chair: Sakib Rahman (UMGSA VPME) 

Meeting Date: October 19th, 2018 
 

The events committee met on 19 October, 2018 between 4:00 and 5:00 pm in the UMGSA 

office. We discussed the logistics for the trip to A Maze in Corn and Haunted Forest trip 

including accounting and collection of waivers. We also discussed possibilities for November 

events such as trampoline dodgeball tournament, board game night etc. We approved the 

International Society of Pharmacoepidemiology student club application.  

 

 

Awards Committee 
 

Chair: Silvia Araujo (UMGSA VPA) 

Meeting Date: No Meeting Held 
 

Dates and times of the meeting and summary of the discussions 

• No meetings held in October. 

Extra aspects related to the Awards 

• None relevant to report. 

 

 

Campaigns Committee 
 

Chair: Skye Kushner (UMGSA VPE) 

Meeting Date: October 25th, 2018 
 

The campaigns committee met once during the month of September to begin work on policy 

statements for the UMGSA. Conversations were had towards positions in the areas of campus 

sustainability and health care. Points were considered during the meeting, which will be 

presented to council after an agreement is reached and concepts are fleshed out. A working 

document was created for members of the campaigns committee to track progress and edit 

between meeting dates. 

 
  



6 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix III : 
 

HSGSA Report 
October 1st – 31st, 2018 

 

 

October was a productive month for the HSGSA. We met with the UMGSA for a joint bylaws 

committee meeting to review changes/consolidations to the bylaws and organization of manuals 

on October 18th from 6-7:30PM. We also worked on finalizing our HSGSA student questionnaire 

aimed at gathering information on times and preferences for University offices to run workshops 

as well as service needs for students such as child care and issues arising from awards and 

stipend payments from supervisors. The questionnaire was sent to our HSGSA council members 

for their suggestions and input before it will be sent out to all Health Science graduate students in 

the beginning of November.  We had our second council meeting of the academic year, and 

councilors filled all the required committee positions. HSGSA also co-hosted a Fall event with 

the UMGSA held at the Maze in the Corn October 27th, 2018 6-9PM, which was well attended 

with approximately 65 students. We have also finalized a date with FGS to hold our Winter 

Health Sciences new student orientation, which will be the afternoon of January 7th 2019. We are 

now in the process of booking rooms/planning workshops and contacting speakers for the Winter 

orientation event.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carmine Slipski 

President HSGSA 2018-19 

 

  



7 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix IV : 
 

Senate Report 

October 1st – 31st, 2018 
Link to Senate agenda: 

http://umanitoba.ca/admin/governance/media/2018_10_03_Senate_Agenda.pdf 

Please note that this report contains only relevant items discussed in Senate related to graduate 

studies and graduate students. All motions presented in this report were carried during the 

October 3rd, 2018 Senate Meeting. 
 

CANDIDATES FOR DEGREES, DIPLOMAS AND CERTIFICATES - OCTOBER 2018 

MATTERS RECOMMENDED FOR CONCURRENCE WITHOUT DEBATE – none 

MATTERS FORWARDED FOR INFORMATION  

1. Reports of the Senate Committee on Awards  
 

SENATE COMMITTEE ON AWARDS – New awards for graduates  

• Dean of the Rady Faculty of Health Sciences Graduate Student Achievement Prize 

• Janice Filmon Leadership Scholarship 

• Ronald F. Guse Scholarship for Excellence in Pharmacy 

• HTFC Planning and Design Canadian Indigenous Design and Planning Fellowship 

• John Urkevich Memorial Bursary in Labour Studies 
 

In total: 10 new offers, 11 revised offers and 23 withdrawals of offers  
 

Faculty of Graduate Studies Travel Award  

The following amendments were made to the terms of reference for the Faculty of Graduate 

Studies Travel Award: 

 • Criterion (1) was revised to:  

(1) have achieved a minimum grade point average of 3.5 in the last 60 credit hours of 

study (or equivalent) and are in good standing;  

(2) • The standard Board of Governors statement was updated. 
 

REPORT OF THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON APPEALS  

The Committee has received 14 appeals since the last report to Senate in January 2018. 
 

An appeal was received against a decision by the Faculty of Graduate Studies. The grounds were 

failure of the Faculty/School or Dean/Director to follow procedures; failure of the 

Faculty/School or Dean/Director to follow the rules of natural justice; and failure of the 

Faculty/School or Dean/Director to reasonably consider all factors relevant to the decision being 

appealed. The appeal had not yet been considered by the lower level appeal body. 
 

An appeal was received against a decision by the Faculty of Graduate Studies. The grounds were 

failure of the Faculty/School or Dean/Director to follow the rules of natural justice and failure of 

the Faculty/School or Dean/Director to reasonably consider all factors relevant to the decision 

being appealed. The appeal was denied. 

  

http://umanitoba.ca/admin/governance/media/2018_10_03_Senate_Agenda.pdf


8 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

IN MEMORIAM  

- Professor Philip Gregory Hultin 

- Jennifer Mary Shay  

- Dr. Al Turnock 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 

• Payroll Services processed 1,215 extra payments of $2,000 to eligible UMFA members on May 

31, to address the ruling of the Manitoba Labour Board. These payments have been provisionally 

treated as non-employment earnings and not subject to normal withholdings pending 

confirmation from the Canada Revenue Agency of the correct treatment. 
 

EXTERNAL MATTERS  
 

• Twenty-nine out of thirty seven meetings with faculties and administrative departments 

on website redesign and migration are completed. Feedback continues to be positive. 

• On May 14 the President met with The Hon. Carolyn Bennett, Minister of Crown-

Indigenous Relations and Northern Affairs prior to her consultation with indigenous 

students in Migizii Agamik 49 to hear their views on the development of a Recognition 

and Implementation of Indigenous Rights Framework. 

• Pride Week activities took place between May 18 – June 3 at both the Fort Garry and 

Bannatyne campuses. The President, members of the executive team and more than 60 

others attended the Fort Garry campus flag raising ceremony on May 28. More than 200 

members of our University community participated in the Pride Parade on June 3 
 

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 

• The University of Manitoba is on track to meet its 2018/2019 campaign benchmark of 

$45,000,000. The last Front and Centre Campaign total, announced on May 29, 2018, 

was $466,495,719. 

• Catherine Cook, indigenous health and leader of Ongomiizwin, the University of 

Manitoba’s Indigenous Institute of Health and Healing, was honoured with the Thomas 

Dignan Indigenous Health Award from the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of 

Canada. The national award celebrates efforts to eradicate inequities in the quality of 

health care for Indigenous people. 

• The Decolonizing Lens is a monthly film series co-organized by Jocelyn Thorpe, 

women’s & gender studies and Kaila Johnston, national centre for truth and 

reconciliation, that brings together Indigenous filmmakers, their films, and their 

audiences. The Decolonizing Lens recently presented the screening of two films about 

canoes at the dramatic arts centre in Winnipeg, followed by a Q&A with filmmakers 

Derrick LaMere and Hillary Beattie. 

• On May 28, the federal government announced $4,184,141 in support to thirteen 

University of Manitoba research projects, through funding from the Social Sciences and 

Humanities Research Council (SSHRC). 

• • The University of Manitoba electrical grid has experienced several issues over the past 

six months. The Manitoba Hydro Reservicing Project is proceeding with Manitoba Hydro 

committing to a 2020 service date. A separate design is underway to resolve the four 

main lines along Ralph Campbell Road. 



9 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

• The Office of Human Rights and Conflict Management led a “Responding to a Sexual 

Assault Disclosure” Workshop to the Post-Secondary Institutions Bill 15 Working Group 

to allow members to experience the workshop, share resources, and ask questions about 

the development of the workshop, delivery and content in order to adapt for their own 

institutions. 

• The University of Manitoba is undertaking a significant initiative to explore how we tell 

our story moving forward. As part of the discovery phase of this project, focus groups 

and larger sessions were held with a variety of key stakeholder groups. Throughout 

August and September, sessions were held with students, faculty and staff, alumni and 

donors. In addition to sessions in Winnipeg, sessions have been held in Brandon, Winkler 

and Selkirk, as well as Calgary and Toronto. Sessions will continue into October for 

additional stakeholder groups including leaders in the areas of community, business, and 

arts and culture. The results, expected in late October, will inform the next phases of the 

project. 

 

  



10 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix V : 
 

UMGSA Executive Reports 

October 1st – 31st, 2018 
 

President - Carl Neumann 
 

Executive Summary of Work: 
 

• University of Manitoba Brand Focus Group Session:  On October 4th, I attended 

one of several Brand Focus Group sessions being held by the University this Fall.  

The University is conducting a review of its institutional branding, with a focus on 

connecting with those outside of the University community.  Feedback on possible 

changes to the University’s logo are also being considered. 
 

• UMGSA Bylaws and Policies Review:  During the month of October, various 

updates to our Bylaws have been proposed to the Bylaws and Policy Committee.  

This precedes related updates to our Policy documents, most of which will tentatively 

be amalgamated into a single document, reducing redundancy and improving 

consistency.  A joint meeting of the UMGSA and HSGSA Bylaws & Policy 

Committees was held to agree on changes which affect HSGSA matters, in 

accordance with our policy requirements. 
 

• Fall Convocation:  I attended all three of the Fall Convocation Ceremonies held at 

the Fort Garry Campus.  I also attended the related luncheons and dinner.  As always, 

these were great opportunities to strengthen relationships with the University’s central 

administration and deans, as well as with UMSU executives. 
 

Meetings Attended: 

October 2nd, 2018 UDC RWLE & SA Policy Review Consultation Session 1 Hour 

October 3rd, 2018 Senate Meeting      1 Hour 

October 3rd, 2018 Meeting with Director of Digital Strategy and Engagement 0.5 Hours 

October 5th, 2018 Responsible Conduct of Research Investigation Meeting 1.5 Hours 

October 9th, 2018 Campus Planning and Design Committee Meeting  1.5 Hours 

October 10th, 2018 UMGSA Bylaws Revision Working Group Meeting  3 Hours 

October 11th, 2018 FGS Council Meeting      1 Hour 

October 12th, 2018 UMGSA Executive Meeting     2 Hours 

October 15th, 2018 Next Gen Web Experience Project Board Meeting  1.5 Hours 

October 16th, 2018 UMGSA Bylaws Revision Working Group Meeting  1.5 Hours 

October 18th, 2018 RWLE & SA Policy Advisory Committee Meeting  1.5 Hours 

October 18th, 2018 Joint UMGSA-HSGSA Bylaws & Policy Committee Mtg 2.5 Hours 

October 19th, 2018 UMGSA Events Committee Meeting    1 Hour 

October 24th, 2018 Senate Executive Meeting     1 Hour 

October 24th, 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting     0.5 Hours 

October 25th, 2018 UMGSA Campaigns Committee Meeting   1 Hour 

October 25th, 2018 UMGSA Finance Committee Meeting   1 Hour 

October 26th, 2018 UMGSA Executive Meeting     2 Hours 



11 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

October 26th, 2018 Meeting with University Secretary    0.5 Hours 

October 29th, 2018 Alumni Association Board of Directors Meeting  2 Hours 

October 31st, 2018 Meeting with the UofM Vice-Provost Students  1 Hour 

October 31st, 2018 Student Senate Caucus Meeting    1 Hour 
 

Meetings Missed:  None. 
 

Time Spent in Meetings in October:  29.5 Hours 
 

Office Hours: 

Wednesday, October 3rd, 2018 12:30PM - 1:30PM & 3:00PM - 4:00PM 

Wednesday, October 10th, 2018 11:30AM - 1:30PM 

Tuesday, October 16th, 2018  12:45PM - 2:45PM 

Wednesday, October 24th, 2018 12:30PM - 1:30PM & 3:00PM - 4:00PM 

Wednesday, October 31st, 2018 1:00PM - 3:00PM 

Time Spent in Official Office Hours in October:  10 Hours 
 

Working Events Attended: 

October 4th, 2018 University of Manitoba Brand Focus Group Session  2.5 Hours 

October 11th, 2018 Honouring Emeriti 2018     1.5 Hours 

October 16th, 2018 Fall Convocation Ceremony # 1    3 Hours 

October 16th, 2018 Convocation Dinner      2.5 Hours 

October 17th, 2018 Convocation Luncheon # 1     1.5 Hours 

October 17th, 2018 Fall Convocation Ceremony # 2    3 Hours 

October 18th, 2018 Convocation Luncheon # 2     1.5 Hours 

October 18th, 2018 Fall Convocation Ceremony # 3    3 Hours 

October 22nd, 2018 UMGSA Council Orientation     2 Hours 

Time Spent at Working Events in October:  20.5 Hours 
 

Approximate Time Spent on Other Activities: 

Preparing Documents for Meetings       17.5 Hours 

Other Email Correspondence        42.5 Hours 
 

Total Hours Spent on the UMGSA in October, 2018:  120 Hours 
 

  



12 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Vice-President Internal (VPI) – Cody Ross 
 

Executive Summary of Work: 
 

Most of my time in October was spent drafting revisions for the revised Bylaws and preparing 

materials for a joint meeting of UMGSA and HSGSA Bylaws and Policy Committees. I also 

prepared and processed many Conference Grant Applications and one Special Project Grant 

through the Finance Committee. I was able to attend all scheduled meetings and office hours. 
 

Meetings Attended: 

October 10th, 2018  Bylaws Synthesis Meeting    2 Hours 

October 12th, 2018  UMGSA Executive Meeting    2 Hours 

October 15th, 2018  Senate Selection Meeting    1 Hours 

October 18tht, 2018  Joint UMGSA/HSGSA B&P Meeting  2.5 Hours 

October 25th, 2018  UMGSA Finance Meeting    1 Hours 

October 26h, 2018  UMGSA Executive Meeting    2 Hours 
 

Meetings Missed: 

None 
 

Time Spent in Meetings in October:  10.5 Hours 
 

Office Hours: 

Thursday, October 4th, 2018      9:00AM - 11:00AM 

Thursday, October 11th, 2018      9:00AM - 11:00AM 

Thursday, October 18th, 2018      9:00AM - 11:00AM 

Thursday, October 25th, 2018      9:00AM - 11:00AM 
 

Time Spent in Official Office Hours in October:  8 Hours 
 

Approximate Time Spent on Other Activities: 

Preparing documents for joint B&P meeting      4 Hours 

Drafting new Bylaws document       10 Hours 

Preparing documents for Finance meeting      2 Hours 

Other Email Correspondence        2 Hours 

Drafting changes for Governance and Operations manual    2 Hours 
 

Total Hours Spent on the UMGSA in October, 2018:  38.5 Hours 

 

  



13 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Vice President External (VPE) – Skye Kushner 
 

Executive Summary of Work: 
 

• Held campaigns committee meeting and began work on crafting policy statements for 

UMGSA 

• Was briefed on the current state of international student health insurance with other 

stakeholders by representatives from Blue Cross. 

• Represented UMGSA at one convocation ceremony, honouring emeriti dinner, and 

Nahlah Ayed reception. 

• Supported the dissolution of the UPASS committee, under the provision that UMGSA is 

given two spots (one non-voting) on the Members Services Committee. 

• Absent for the first week of the month in Toronto. No committee meetings missed. 

October – Office Commitments 

Day Start Finish Note Total 

9th  10:30 12:30 

Absent for regular office hours on the 3rd of the previous 

week (in Toronto). Caught up on work and work-related 

gossip. 2 

10th 2:30 4:30 

Attended international student’s health insurance 

stakeholders meeting, prepared for said meeting. 2 

17th 2:30 4:30 

Began preparing for upcoming campaigns meeting. 

Identified points to cover and set up poll for meeting 2 

24th 2:30 4:30 Prepared for upcoming meetings on 24th, 25th, and 26th 2 

31st  2:30 4:30 

Arranged meeting w/ international center around issue of 

guarantors for international students. Worked on 

campaigns committee document 2 

   Total 10 

  



14 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

 

 

October - Meetings/Other 

Day Start Finish Note Total 

10th  3:00 4:00 

International student’s health insurance stakeholder 

meeting 1 

11h 5:00 7:00 Honouring Emeriti dinner 2 

12th 9:30 11:30 UMGSA executive meeting 2 

13th 11:00 1:00 Joint UPASS and members services meeting 2 

18th 2:30 5:30 Fall convocation ceremony 3 

22nd 2:00 4:00 UMGSA council orientation 2 

24th 5:30 6:30 UMGSA council meeting 1 

25th  9:00 10:30 Champions of mental health meeting 1.5 

25th  3:30 5:00 Campaigns committee meeting 1.5 

25th  6:30 8:00 UMSU board of directors meeting 1.5 

26th  9:30 11:30 UMGSA Executive Meeting 2 

31st  10:30 12:00 International center reception w/ Nahlah Ayed 1.5 

Total 21 

 

Summary of Hours: 

Total time spent in meetings: 21 

Meetings Absent: UMSU Board of Directors (with regrets, October 11th) 

Meetings cancelled: Event with Nahlah Ayed (October 30th event canceled by university) 

Total Hours Spent on UMGSA in October, 2018: 31 Hours 

 
 

  



15 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Vice-President Health Sciences (VPHS) – Carmine Slipski 
 

 

Executive Summary of Work: 

• Attended joint bylaws committee with UMGSA/HSGSA to go over and consolidate 

governing and bylaws documents. 
 

Housekeeping 

• Handed out executive payments, and attended all meetings and office hours 
 

Executive Summary of Hours:  

2018-10-02 HSGSA Executive Meeting 1.5 

2018-10-03 Office Hours 2.0 

2018-10-17 Office Hours 2.0 

2018-10-18 UMGSA Joint Bylaws committee 2.5 

2018-10-22 HSGSA Council Meeting 2.0 

2018-10-24 Office Hours 2.0 

2018-10-24 UMGSA Council Meeting 1.0 

2018-10-26 UMGSA Executive Meeting 2.0 

2018-10-29 HSGSA Executive Meeting 2.0 

2018-10-31 Office Hours 2.0 

Monthly Total  

 

19.0 Hours 
 

 

COMMITTEES, MEETINGS, AND BUSINESS MATTERS 

Meetings Attended:  

 

October 2, 2018  HSGSA Executive     1.5 hours 

October 18, 2018  Joint Bylaws Committee     2.5 hours 

October 22, 2018  HSGSA Council Meeting    2.0 hours 

October 24, 2018  UMGSA Council Meeting    1.0 hours  

October 26, 2018  UMGSA Executive Meeting    2.0 hours 

October 29, 2018  HSGSA Executive Meeting     2.0 hours 

 

 

 

 

Time spent in meetings: 11.0 hours 

Meetings Cancelled:0 

Meetings Missed:0 

Office Hours: 

Wednesday: 9:00 - 11:00 a.m. 

Time spent in the office: 8 hrs 

Total Hours Spent on HSGSA/UMGSA for October, 2018: 19.0 Hours 

  



16 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Vice-President Academic (VPA) – Silvia Araujo 
 

 

Executive Summary of Work: 

● Attended a few meetings related to the graduate student life and UMGSA, including: SCIE, 

Bylaws and Policy, Campaigns, Council, Executive and Student Senate Caucus. 

● Only able to hold one day of office hours for October. 

● Maintained e-mail and personal communications in general with graduate students and the 

UMGSA executive team. 
 

Executive Summary of Hours: 

Day Start Finish Note Total 

10/11/2018     FGS council (missed)   

10/12/2018 10:00 AM 1:00 PM Emails and writing reports 3:00 

10/18/2018 1:25 PM 7:40 PM 

Senate Committee on Instructions and 

Evaluations (1:25-3:30) + Emails (3:30-4:45) 

+ UMGSA Bylaws and Policy Committee 

Meeting (4:45-7:40) 6:15 

10/22/2018     Councillors orientation (missed)   

10/24/2018 5:15 PM 6:15 PM Council Meeting 1:00 

10/25/2018 3:30 PM 5:00 PM UMGSA Campaigns Committee Meeting   

10/26/2018 9:30 AM 12:15 PM Executive meeting + office hours 2:45 

10/31/2018 5:45 PM 7:00 PM Student Senate Caucus Meeting 1:15 

     Monthly Total 14:15:00 

          
 

Summary of Hours: 

Time spent in meetings: 9:15. 

Meetings Cancelled: None. 

Meetings Missed: FGS Council and Councillors orientation. 

Total Hours Spent on UMGSA in October, 2018: 14:15 Hours 

  



17 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Vice-President Marketing & Events (VPME) – Sakib Rahman 
 

Executive Summary of Work: 

● Served all office hours. 
● Attended all Executive meetings and council meeting. 
● Organized the Trip to A Maze in Corn and Haunted Forest. 
● Explored logistics for November events. 
● Reviewed updated International Society of Pharmacoepidemiology student club 

application. 
 

Executive Summary of Hours: 

 Day Start Finish Note Total 

Time in 

Office 

2 October 2018 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Office Hours 1 

9 October 2018 12:00 PM 2:00 PM Office Hours 2 

15 October 2018 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Office Hours 1 

17 October 2018 3:00 PM 5:00 PM Office Hours    2 

23 October  2018 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Office Hours 1 

24 October 2018 3:00 PM 5:00 PM Office Hours 2 

30 October 2018 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Office Hours 1 

31 October 2018 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Office Hours 1 

Time in  

Meetings 

12 October 2018 9:51 AM 11:46 AM Executive Meeting  1.92 

26 October 2018 10:30 AM  11:30 AM Executive Meeting (Phone) 1 

24 October 2018 5:30 AM 5:54 PM Council Meeting 0.4 

19 October 2018 4:00 PM 5:00 PM Events Committee Meeting 1 

Time in  

Other 

Activities 

4 October 2018 12:00 PM 12:30 PM Email Correspondence 0.5 

10 October 2018 4:00 PM 4:30 PM Email Correspondence 0.5 

12 October 2018 1:30 PM 2:00 PM Email Correspondence 0.5 

18 October 2018 8:00 PM 8:30 PM Event Preparation (Filling 

Booking form) 

0.5 

26 October 2018 7:00 PM 11:00 PM Event Preparation (Email 

Communication, 

Accounting, Sorting 

waivers) 

4 

27 October 2018 4:00 PM 9:30 PM  July Newsletter  5.5 

 Monthly Total 26.82 

 

Time in Office: 11 hours (12:00 pm-1:00 pm Monday and 4:00-5:00 pm Wednesday usually) 

Time in meetings: 4.32 hours (Meetings Cancelled: None, Meetings Missed: Campaigns) 

Time in Other Activities: 11.5 hours  

Total Hours Spent on UMGSA for October, 2018: 26.82 Hours 
 

  



18 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Senator 1 –Chidiebere Felix Nwaiwu 
 

October Executive Report 

• UMGSA Executive meetings, UMGSA Council meeting  

• Held regular office hours   

• Maintained regular e-mail communications   
 

Summary of Hours  

Date Start End Note Start 

5/10/18 11:30am 2:00pm Office Hours 2:30 

5/10/18 7:00pm 8:30pm Prepared September Executive Report 1:30 

11/10/18 1:00pm 2:00pm FGS Faculty Council 1:00 

12/10/18 9:30pm 11:30pm UMGSA Executive Meeting 2:00 

12/10/18 12:00 2:00pm Office hours 2:00 

18/10/18 5:00pm 7:30pm Joint Bylaws and Policy Committee Meeting 2:30 

19/10/18 12:00 2:00pm Office Hours 2:00 

19/10/18 4:00pm 5:00pm Events Committee Meeting 1:00 

21/10/18 6:00pm 9:00pm Studying Senate Appeal Package 3:00 

22/10/18 2:00pm 4:00pm UMGSA Council Orientation 2:00 

23/10/18 9:00am 12:00pm Senate Appeal Hearing 3:00 

24/10/18 1:30pm 2:30pm Senate Executive Meeting 1:00 

24/10/18 5:30pm 6:00pm UMGSA Council Meeting 0:30 

26/10/18 9:30am 11:30am UMGSA Executive Meeting 2:00 

26/10/18 12:00 2:00pm Office hours 2:00 

31/10/18 6:00pm 7:00pm Student Senate Caucus Meeting 1:00 

Total 29:00 
 

Time spent in meetings: 15:30 hours 

Meetings cancelled:  None 

Meetings missed: Sent in regrets for October senate meeting as the time conflicted 

with a class. 
 

Office Hours: 

Fridays; 12 Noon – 2 PM 

Time spent in the office: 8.5 hours  

Total Hours Spent on UMGSA for October, 2018: 29 Hours  

  



19 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Senator 2 – Laura Forsythe 
 

Meetings Attended  

October   3 Senate Meeting      1:30-3:00 1.5 Hours  

October   4 Senate Committee on Instruction    1:30-3:00 1.5 Hours  

October   5 Chancellor Search Committee   8:30- 9:30 1.0 Hour 

October 11 FGS Faculty Council      1:00-3:00 2.0 Hours  

October 15 Senate Planning and Priorities Committee  2:30-4:00 1.5 Hours  

October 18  Senate Committee on Instruction    1:30-3:00 1.5 Hours  

October 24 UMGSA council meeting     5:00-6:00 1.0 Hours 

October 25 UMGSA Campaigns Meeting        4:30-5:00 0.5 Hours  

October 25 UMGSA Finance Meeting     5:00-6:30 1.5 Hours  

October 26 UMGSA Executive Meeting     9:30-11:30 2.0 Hours  

October 29 Senate Planning and Priorities Committee   2:30-4:00 1.5 Hours  
 

Meetings Missed        

October 31  Student Senate Caucus  - Sent Regrets on Halloween night I needed to be 

with my children 

 

Times spent in meetings 15.5 hours  

 

Office Hours  

October 1 10-12  2 hours  

October 9 10-12  2 hours  

October 15 12-2  2 hours  

October 31 12-2  2 hours 

 

Time Spent in Office hours 8 hours  

 

October 3rd Indigenous Grad event  5:00-7:00 2 hours  

Council Orientation October 24th  2:00-4:00  2 Hours  

 

Time spent on other activities 4 hours  

 

Total hours on UMGSA in October, 2018: 27.5 Hours  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix VI : 
 

Amendments to the 2018-19 UMGSA Budget 
 

     

Year-to-Date 
Figures 

  

Budget 
Approved in 

May   

Proposed 
Budget 

 Income       

  4000 · Revenue      

   4010 · Membership Fees 342,313.39  394,660.00  

         
420,031.00  

   4031 · GSA Cash Box Revenue 260.85  0.00  

                
450.00  

   4033 · Events Revenue 727.40  0.00  

                
725.00  

   4050 · Ad Sales - Student Handbook 5,657.80  4,000.00  

             
5,655.00  

   4070 · Endowment Fund 95,298.83  105,000.00  

         
111,750.00  

   4085 · To External Relations Fund 48,348.28  53,270.00  

           
56,694.50  

   4110 · The Manitoban 19,059.77  21,000.00  

           
22,350.00  

   4111 · UMFM Radio Fund 15,883.14  17,500.00  

           
18,625.00  

   4112 · UMREG Fee 7,941.56  8,750.00  

             
9,312.50  

   4113 · WUSC Fee 7,941.56  8,750.00  

             
9,312.50  

   4114 · World Wise Fee 1,588.31  1,750.00  

             
1,862.50  

   4115 · Engineers Without Borders 794.16  875.00  

                
931.25  

   4120 · Interest on Bank Accts 280.44  650.00  

                
600.00  

   4130 · Interest - Endowment Fund 31,500.00  54,000.00  

           
54,000.00  

   4150 · Other income 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 4000 · Revenue 577,595.49   670,205.00   
         

712,299.25  

 Total Income 577,595.49   670,205.00   
         

712,299.25  

 Expense       

  5000 · Honorarium/salary/benefits      

   5005 · Executive 35,950.02  71,900.00  

           
71,900.00  

   5010 · HSGSA 18,600.00  37,200.00  

           
37,200.00  

   5015 · Election Returning Officers      

    5015.1 · Chief Returning Officer 0.00  1,200.00  

             
1,500.00  

    5015.2 · Deputy Receiving Officer 0.00  600.00  

                
600.00  

    5015 · Election Returning Officers - Other 0.00  0.00  0.00 

   Total 5015 · Election Returning Officers 0.00   1,800.00   
             

2,100.00  

   5016 · IDRSC-Chair 0.00  1,500.00  

             
1,500.00  

   5020 · Council Chairperson 250.00  600.00  

                
600.00  



21 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

   5030 · Employee Pay 38,715.14  83,000.00  

           
80,000.00  

   5040 · Employer Paid CPP 3,423.00  8,000.00  

             
8,000.00  

   5045 · Employer Paid EI 2,250.87  5,500.00  

             
5,500.00  

   5050 · Employer Paid RRSP      

    5050.1 · - Ruth 696.64  0.00   

    5050.2 · - Jayne 461.44  0.00   

    5050 · Employer Paid RRSP - Other 1,723.38  5,900.00  

             
5,700.00  

   Total 5050 · Employer Paid RRSP 2,881.46   5,900.00   
             

5,700.00  

   5055 · Employee Health/Dental Premiums 1,338.47  4,000.00  

             
4,000.00  

   5060 · Employee Parking or Bus Pass 920.95  2,300.00  

             
2,300.00  

   5000 · Honorarium/salary/benefits - Other 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 5000 · Honorarium/salary/benefits 104,329.91   221,700.00   
         

218,800.00  

  6005 · HSGSA - Bannatyne Disbursements 916.02  21,000.00  

           
21,000.00  

  6020 · Capital Expense      

   6025 · Major Purchases 5,625.00  0.00  5,625.00 

   6040 · GSA Lounge Space 0.00  0.00  0.00 

   6020 · Capital Expense - Other 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 6020 · Capital Expense 5,625.00   0.00   5,625.00 

  6150 · External Relations Fund 48,348.27  53,270.00  

           
56,694.50  

  6200 · Council & Committees      

   6210 · Hospitality for Committee Mtgs 274.95  1,000.00  

                
350.00  

   6215 · Hospitality for Council Mtgs 932.65  2,500.00  

             
2,500.00  

   6220 · Pking/Bus/Mileage - Exec- Mtgs 15.00  100.00  

                  
50.00  

  Total 6200 · Council & Committees 1,222.60   3,600.00   
             

2,900.00  

  6325 · Elections      

   6321 · Elections 0.00  1,000.00  

             
1,000.00  

   6322 · Elections - Online Voting 0.00  1,500.00  

             
2,000.00  

  Total 6325 · Elections 0.00   2,500.00   
             

3,000.00  

  6375 · External meeting Expenses      

   6376 · ThinkGrad Membership & Meetings 1,905.23  6,000.00  

             
6,000.00  

   6385 · Other External Mtgs(UM Tickets) 0.00  650.00  

                
650.00  

   6375 · External meeting Expenses - Other 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 6375 · External meeting Expenses 1,905.23   6,650.00   
             

6,650.00  

  6400 · Fees      

   6405 · Bank Service Charges 0.00  25.00  

                  
25.00  

   6410 · Annual Incorporation Fee 25.00  25.00  

                  
25.00  

   6415 · Subscriptions, Etc 135.60  500.00  

                
500.00  



22 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

   6425 · Revenue Canada - Penalty Charge 0.00  0.00  0.00 

   6435 · Other Fees 0.00  0.00  0.00 

   6440 · UPass Admin Fees to UMSU 0.00  5,400.00  

             
5,400.00  

  Total 6400 · Fees 160.60   5,950.00   
             

5,950.00  

  6450 · Fees Paid to UMSU      

   6451 · UMFM 15,883.14  17,500.00  

           
18,625.00  

   6452 · UMREG 7,941.57  8,750.00  

             
9,312.50  

   6453 · WUSC 7,941.57  8,750.00  

             
9,312.50  

   6454 · World Wise 1,588.31  1,750.00  

             
1,862.50  

  Total 6450 · Fees Paid to UMSU 33,354.59   36,750.00   
           

39,112.50  

  6460 · Fees Paid to Other Organization      

   6461 · Engineers Without Borders 0.00  875.00  

                
931.25  

   6475 · The Manitoban 0.00  21,000.00  

           
22,350.00  

  Total 6460 · Fees Paid to Other Organization 0.00   21,875.00   
           

23,281.25  

  6500 · Grants      

   6503 · Departmental Grants 40.00  48,560.00  

           
47,951.00  

   6505 · Graduate Teaching Award 500.00  250.00  

                
500.00  

   6510 · Special Projects 579.18  4,500.00  

             
2,000.00  

   6520 · Conference Grants 140,347.69  150,000.00  

         
188,000.00  

   6540 · Emergency Grants 0.00  1,000.00  

             
1,000.00  

   6545 · Childcare (PlayCare DayCare) 0.00  1,500.00  0.00 

   6550 · Holiday Hampers 0.00  3,200.00  

             
3,200.00  

   6555 · Food Bank 0.00  2,000.00  

             
2,000.00  

   6560 · Tax Office Support 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 6500 · Grants 141,466.87   211,010.00   
         

244,651.00  

  6600 · Promotions      

   6604 · GSA Marketing & Promotion 0.00  600.00  

                
600.00  

   6605 · GSA Designed Items 297.14  600.00  

                
300.00  

   6610 · Handbook/Student Planner 5,435.30  6,200.00  

             
5,440.00  

   6635 · Mentorship Programming 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  Total 6600 · Promotions 5,732.44   7,400.00   
             

6,340.00  

  66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00  0.00  0.00 

  6750 · Office Expenses & Supplies      

   6754 · Office Coffee & Snack Supplies 85.50  200.00  

                
200.00  

   6755 · Stationery and office supplies 257.60  600.00  

                
600.00  

   6760 · IOS Copier Lease 831.85  300.00  

                
835.00  

   6763 · Kyocera Printer/Copier - 2018 0.00  200.00  

                
200.00  



23 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

   6765 · Quarterly Copies 118.00  50.00  

                
120.00  

   6770 · Insurance 4,813.56  4,900.00  

             
4,815.00  

   6775 · Office Improvements 0.00  100.00  

                
100.00  

   6780 · U of M - Monthly Ledger 815.43  1,750.00  

             
1,750.00  

   6785 · Office Expenses/Supplies-Other 0.00  100.00  

                
100.00  

  Total 6750 · Office Expenses & Supplies 6,921.94   8,200.00   
             

8,720.00  

  6795 · Professional Development 0.00  1,000.00  

             
1,000.00  

  6800 · Programming      

   6805 · Orientation 1,232.23  2,400.00  

             
2,400.00  

   6810 · Social Events 3,253.25  6,000.00  

             
6,000.00  

   6812 · Sports Events 647.50  2,500.00  

             
2,500.00  

   6822 · Alumni Collaboration Event 0.00  1,800.00  

             
1,800.00  

   6825 · GSA Awards Luncheon 218.83  2,300.00  

             
2,000.00  

   6830 · Council Orientation Day 71.15  500.00  

                  
75.00  

  Total 6800 · Programming 5,422.96   15,500.00  
           

14,775.00  

  6850 · Endowment      

   6851 · Endowment Fund 0.00  0.00  0.00 

   6853 · Front & Centre Campaign-Daycare 0.00  30,000.00  

           
30,000.00  

  Total 6850 · Endowment 0.00   30,000.00   
           

30,000.00  

  6925 · Professional Consulting      

   6930 · Audit 11,978.00  14,500.00  

           
14,500.00  

   6935 · Legal 0.00  2,000.00  

             
2,000.00  

   6940 · Computer & Website Maintenance 5,008.50  7,300.00  

             
7,300.00  

  Total 6925 · Professional Consulting 16,986.50   23,800.00   
           

23,800.00  

 Total Expense 372,392.93   670,205.00   
         

712,299.25  

Net Income  205,203.00   0.00   0.00 

          

          

    Colour Coding:       

          

    Revised Estimates Based on Updated Student Numbers     

          

    Recommended Changes       

          

    Subsection Totals       
 

 

 



24 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Appendix VII : 
 

Executive Summary for the Aggregation of UMGSA Policy Manuals 
 

Revisions to the UMGSA governing documents were first proposed by the current Executive 

during the election period of 2018. Here, proposed changes are outlined to aggregate the 

Committee, Council, Executive, Financial and Clubs Policy Manuals into a single document 

called the Governance and Operations Manual. Alteration to the format of this document will 

make it easier to navigate and will also reduce redundancy and conflicting information across 

multiple governing documents. Additional changes are suggested for the Governance and 

Operations Manual to prepare for forthcoming changes to the Bylaws at the December 5th 

UMGSA Annual Meeting. 

 

Summary of Changes 
 

• Minor editorial changes have been made throughout the document. 

• The existing UMGSA manuals have been aggregated so that each individual manual now 

occupies a section in the Governance and Operations Manual. 

• Rather than having amendment procedures at the beginning of each manual, Article I of 

the document now describes a procedure that applies for all subsequent sections. 

• Now that there are fewer documents to navigate and since changes to the Bylaws are 

being recommended, the “Relevant Bylaws” Article in each section has been removed. 

• A few changes to the UMGSA Executive structure are being recommended at the 

UMGSA Annual Meeting and throughout this document the names and duties have been 

adjusted to accommodate those changes, specifically: 

o The VPI is now the Vice-President Finance and Administration to better reflect 

duties. 

o The VPA will now also hold one of the 3 Senate positions to better facilitate their 

academic involvement and representation of UMGSA students. 

o The VPE and VPME have been amalgamated to Vice-President Services and 

Support. The marketing component previously undertaken by the VPME will be 

full taken over by permanent office staff to ensure consistency and dependability 

in UMGSA marketing regardless of semi-transient Executive. 

o The Senator position previously designated for HSGSA students has been 

reformatted to comply with regulations of how students can be elected to Senate. 

o Executive-at-large has been removed from the Executive, since they did not have 

the ability to vote. This position is being re-worked in the new year as a better 

defined advisory position. 

• Multiple duties are common across all Executive Members. To avoid redundancy, Article 

VII.3 has been added to describe those common duties. 

• Non-academic committee requirements for the VPA have been removed to account for 

the fact that they will now also act as a Senator. 



25 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

• The UMGSA Executive duties of the HSGSA President have been better defined to 

reflect historical practices and intended function as a liaison between campuses. 

• Minor additions to the Senator responsibilities have been made – specifically, at least one 

UMGSA Senator must be in attendance at each HSGSA Council meeting, to account for 

the fact that there will no longer explicitly be a HSGSA Senator. 

• The Executive At Large position has been removed from the Executive responsibilities 

section as recommended in the revisions to the Bylaws. In the new year, this position will 

be reformatted towards its intended advisory duties. 

• Article XV has been added to the Governance and Operations Manual, since it has been 

proposed that those details should not be included in the UMGSA Bylaws. 

• Article XVII.2 has been added since it has been proposed that those details should not be 

included in the UMGSA Bylaws. This addition also replaces a less clear section that 

included the same content. 

• Article XVIII.III.2 has been altered to better describe the purpose of the External 

Relations Fund. This change is suggested based on information from UMGSA legal 

representation that clarifies our current position regarding relationships with external 

organization affiliations. 

 

 

Article I 

Changes to Article I of the UMGSA Bylaws were primarily editorial. A definition of the HSGSA 

was added that previously did not exist. Also reference to interchangeability of writing style was 

removed since the governing documents have been rephrased using gender neutral pronouns.  

 

 

Article II 

Changes to Article II of the UMGSA Bylaws were editorial. Definitions of which departments 

are included in the HSGSA were removed – (1) an autonomous association should not be defined 

in the UMGSA Bylaws, (2) definitions for departmental grants are defined in other UMGSA 

governing documents, and (3) the definition was inconsistent with definitions from other 

UMGSA, HSGSA and faculty documentation. 

 

  



26 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article III 

Changes to Article III of the UMGSA Bylaws were editorial for points Article III.1 and Article 

III.2. The membership of the Executive was altered to better distribute workload across the 

UMGSA Executive, while making each Executive position more effective.  

• The VPI is now the Vice-President Finance and Administration to better reflect duties. 

• The VPA will now also hold one of the 3 Senate positions to better facilitate their 

academic involvement and representation of UMGSA students. 

• The VPE and VPME have been amalgamated to Vice-President Services and Support. 

The marketing component previously undertaken by the VPME will be full taken over by 

permanent office staff to ensure consistency and dependability in UMGSA marketing 

regardless of semi-transient Executive. 

• The Senator position previously designated for HSGSA students has been reformatted to 

comply with regulations of how students can be elected to Senate. 

• Executive-at-large has been removed from the Executive, since they did not have the 

ability to vote. This position is being re-worked in the new year as a better defined 

advisory position. 

Changes to the UMGSA Executive will result in a more equal distribution of work across the 

Executive. It will also make each position more effective at fulfilling its purpose. The final 

benefit to this change is financial – amalgamation of the VPE and VPME positions along with 

the VPA functioning as a Senator will save two honoraria annually. Discussion surrounding a 

reduction in Executive size as a cost saving measure has been presented multiple times at 

Council and during the Election period over the last two years. 
 

Definitions of the HSGSA Executive have been removed from Article III as the UMGSA is not 

able to define the HSGSA Executive. This Bylaws remains from a time when the UMGSA and 

HSGSA shared a common set of Bylaws. 
 

Changes to the impeachment of Executives have been made. These changes lay out a clearer 

process to pursue impeachment that was vague in the previous version. It also emphasizes that 

any type of abuse within our association is unacceptable. 

 

 

Article IV 

Changes to Article IV of the UMGSA Bylaws are to eliminate redundancy. Specifically, there 

was overlap between the Article and the UMGSA Election and Referendum Manual that was re-

written and approved by council last year. Also, revisions to the Bylaws and other manuals that 

were explicitly mentioned were already more clearly described in both cases. 

 

  



27 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article V 

Changes to Article V are the most extensive and will be described section-by-section. 
 

Faculty Associations 

This section was added to recognize Faculty students’ associations that already exist (e.g., 

HSGSA and Education) and encourage additional Faculty associations that have expressed 

interest in forming. 
 

Governing Documents 

This section was added to establish a hierarchy for our governing documents for operational 

purposes. 
 

Amendment of Documents 

Minor editorial changes were made and the frequency of meetings for a joint UMGSA and 

HSGSA Bylaws and Policy Committees was removed as it was untenable for all parties. 
 

General Meetings 

Minor editorial changes and rephrasing. New wording grants more power to Membership to call 

additional general meetings. 
 

Executive Responsibilities 

Minor editorial changes and rephrasing with reference to more specific descriptions of 

responsibilities in the UMGSA Governance and Operations Manual. Again, defining the 

responsibilities of HSGSA Executive have been removed as they are defined by the HSGSA and 

not the UMGSA. 
 

Council Responsibilities 

Minor editorial changes and rephrasing. Also, grants and donations of a higher dollar amount can 

now be approved by the Finance Committee to prevent multiple presentations for the same grant 

to the Finance Committee and Council. 
 

Committees 

Some committees have been re-named to better reflect the corresponding name changes of the 

Executive who chair the committees. Reference to HSGSA committees has been removed (see 

previous rationale). 
 

Finances 

Improvements were made to better define our financial structure, including definitions and 

stricter guidelines related to seeking budget approval from Council. Also, the UMGSA will no 

longer re-issue stale-dated cheques, which was also recently passed for other governing 

documents.  
 

Honoraria amounts have been removed from the Bylaws as they are redundant with the UMGSA 

Governance and Operations Manual and more robust phrasing was added to prevent changes to 

Executive honoraria. 
 

Information related to transfer payments to the HSGSA have also been removed from the 

Bylaws. They now more appropriately appear in the Governance and Operations Manual.  

 

 



28 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Financial Reporting and Audits 

This section was added to make the financial status of the UMGSA more transparent to the 

Membership. 
 

Currency 

Straight-forward addition. 
 

Fees 

Information related to fees was removed from other sections to have that information more easily 

accessible to interested parties. 
 

Article VI 

This section was edited to reflect affiliations with any external organizations. It was also revised 

based on recommendations and information provided by legal representation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Proposed UMGSA Governance and Operations Manual is 

provided on the following pages, as Appendix VIII. 

  



29 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance and Operations Manual  

of the University of Manitoba Graduate 

Students’ Association 
 

 

 

 

  



30 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Index Page 

 
ARTICLE I: AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ............................................................................................. 

COUNCIL 

ARTICLE II: MEETING RULES AND ORDER ........................................................................................ 

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS .......................................................................... 

ARTICLE IV: ROLES AND RESPONSBILITIES OF COUNCIL ........................................................... 

EXECUTIVE 

ARTICLE V: EXECUTIVE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES ............................................................. 

ARTICLE VI: CONFLICT RESOLUTION PROCEDURE ....................................................................... 

COMMITTEES 

ARTICLE VII: STANDING COMMITTEES .............................................................................................. 

ARTICLE VIII: AD-HOC COMMITTEES ................................................................................................. 

ARTICLE IX: EXTERNAL COMMITTEES MANDATING UMGSA REPRESENTATION .............. 

FINANCE 

ARTICLE X: BUDGET GUIDELINES ........................................................................................................ 

ARTICLE XI: HONORARIA ........................................................................................................................ 

ARTICLE XII: GRANTS AND AWARDS ................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XIII: HSGSA FINANCES AND TRANSFERS ......................................................................... 

ARTICLE XIV: FUNDS AND RESERVES.................................................................................................. 

ARTICLE XV: AUDITS AND TRANSPARENCY ..................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XVI: UMGSA-SPONSORED TRAVEL .................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XVII: ETHICAL PURCHASING ............................................................................................... 

CLUBS 

ARTICLE XVIII: PREAMBLE ..................................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XIX: DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XX: REVIEW OF UMGSA/HSGSA CLUB .............................................................................. 

ARTICLE XXI: APPLICATION FOR REGOGNITION AS UMGSA/HSGSA CLUB .......................... 

ARTICLE XXII: REQUIREMENTS FOR RATIFICATION .................................................................... 

ARTICLE XXIII: APPEALS ......................................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XXIV: CLUB RIGHTS ................................................................................................................ 

ARTICLE XXV: CLUB RESPONSIBILITIES ............................................................................................ 

ARTICLE XXVI: ELECTIONS .................................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XXVII: FINANCES ...................................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XXVIII: TRADE-MARK USE .................................................................................................... 

ARTICLE XXIX: CLUB INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT..................................................... 



31 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

ARTICLE XXX: REMOVAL OF CLUB MEMBERS ................................................................................ 

ARTICLE XXXI: CLUB SANCTIONS AND/OR DE-RATIFICATION .................................................. 

 

  



32 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article I: Amendment Procedures 
 
1. This Governance and Operations Manual may be amended at a meeting of Council with a regular majority. 

2. Any proposed amendments to this document must be circulated one week prior to the Council meeting. 

3. Any ratified changes to this document must be made available to the membership in print and electronic form 

within two weeks of the changes being accepted. 

  



33 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

COUNCIL 
 

 

Article II: Meeting Rules and Order 
 
1. Rules of Order 

a. All Council and General Meetings of the UMGSA shall be governed by Robert’s Revised Rules of Order 

subject to the Bylaws of the UMGSA and the Governance and Operations Manual. 

2. Council Meetings 

a. The regular meetings of the Council shall be conducted at least once a month, except in June, July, and 

December, at a time and place designated by the President.  A regular meeting may be called in June, 

July and December, with one week’s notice to Council. 

b. The President, or five members of Council, shall have the right to call an emergency meeting of the 

Council upon forty-eight hours’ notice of the Council membership. This will be done by submitting a 

letter in writing to the Chair of Council with an agenda. 

3. Quorum 

a. A majority of the Councillors and a majority of the Executive shall form a quorum for the transaction of 

business.  

b. Provided their meeting has been properly called, a quorum may exercise all the powers of the Council.  

c. In the absence of a quorum, no business shall be transacted at a meeting of Councillors, except the 

adjournment of the meeting to a new date of which notice shall be given to all members of the Council. 

4. Reports to Council 

a. Committee Reports 

i. All filled committees must submit a written report of their activities at regular meetings of 

Council. 

ii. Any motion contained within a report is considered to be moved and seconded by the members 

of the Committee. 

iii. Reports that may not be considered for Concurrence without Debate include: 

1. Any report containing a motion that allocates monies not already included in the 

UMGSA Budget. 

2. Any report or motion that would amend portions of the Bylaws of the UMGSA, the 

Governance and Operations Manual or the Election and Referendum Manual. 

b. Executive Member Reports 

i. Each executive member shall submit a written report every regular meeting detailing: 

1. Meetings and office hours attended and missed 

2. Activities outside of those actions undertaken by Committee 

c. Departmental Reports 

i. Reports to Council can be made by any departmental representative at any Council meeting.  

Formal reports should be submitted to the Office Manager for circulation to the Council.  

Informal reports can be made at meetings, as long as the Chair is informed that the 

representative wishes to speak.  Reports should address events and matters relating to Graduate 

Students from the individual department. 

5. Motions 

a. Prior Notice 

i. The following motions require prior notice: 

1. Additions, deletions or amendments to the Governance and Operations Manual or the 

Election and Referendum Policy. 

2. Calls for referenda and elections. 

3. Amendments to the budget. 

4. All motions coming from Committee 

ii. Prior notice shall be given with the exact wording of the motion, along with all supporting 

documents, distributed no less than 7 days before the motion can be voted on by Council.  



34 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

iii. If prior notice is given and a motion is then amended, the amended motion can be passed at the 

same meeting. 

iv. Motions not requiring a change of policy or finances, such as the motion to refer to Committee 

or provide a letter of support for a cause, may come from the floor. 

b. Friendly amendments 

i. Amendments which do not significantly change the spirit of a motion can, with the permission 

of the original mover, be adopted without a motion or vote to amend. 

c. Voting 

i. Questions arising at any meeting of the Council shall be decided by a majority of votes.   

ii. The following motions require a two-thirds majority of Council to be approved. 

1. Amendments to the Budget 

iii. Absentee voting 

1. Councillors who are also members of the Health Sciences Graduate Students’ 

Association may cast absentee votes on motions of Council. 

a. For HSGSA members, absentee votes may be provided by signing a nominal 

roll for the motion, noting either for or against, when the motion is raised at 

HSGSA Council. 

b. If a motion for which absentee votes have been submitted is amended at 

Council, the HSGSA President shall cast the votes for the amended motion 

in the spirit in which the absentee votes were cast. 

2. Prior to the meeting of Council, absentee votes must be provided to the Chair and 

contain a signature or digital signature in the form of a known email address: one that 

is registered with the UMGSA or the University of Manitoba.  

3. In the event that teleconferencing facilities are being used to allow real-time 

participation by Councillors from HSGSA departments, absentee votes by those 

Councillors will not be counted. 

iv. Email voting 

1. A motion can be presented and voted upon by email if the vote is mediated by the 

Chair and the results are ratified at the next Council meeting.  

2. In the event that a motion does not have a mover and seconder, the first two email 

votes in favour of the motion are considered to come from the mover and seconder of 

the motion. 

v. Resolution in lieu of meeting 

1. A resolution in writing signed by all the Council members entitled to vote on that 

resolution at a meeting of the Council or of the Executive Committee is as valid as if 

it had been passed at a properly constituted meeting and is effective from the date 

specified in the resolution, but that date shall not be prior to the date on which the first 

Council member signed the resolution. 

vi. Concurrence without Debate 

1. Concurrence without Debate means that an item is accepted for informational purposes 

by Council, but is not approved and thus is not declared true by Council. 

2. Reports to Council by any Executive member or Committee are to be accepted as 

concurrence without debate. 

3. Nominal Rolls for grants (either travel or departmental) are also to be accepted for 

concurrence without debate 

 

  



35 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article III: Membership and Voting Rights 
 
1. Members of Council 

a. The following shall be ex officio voting members of Council 

i. One Councillor from each department with a graduate program 

ii. All members of the Executive Committee 

b. The following shall be ex officio non-voting members of Council 

i. CUPE 3909 representative 

ii. UMSU representative 

iii. GSA Office Manager 

iv. GSA Executive Assistant 

v. Chair 

vi. Indigenous Student Centre Representative 

2. Councillors of the UMGSA 

a. Each department which offers a graduate program shall be entitled to send a representative member to 

Council. 

i. The Councillor must be chosen democratically by the membership of the applicable department, 

on a regular term determined by the departmental membership. 

ii. In order to have a representative on Council, all graduate student members of the department 

must be eligible to run for election as their UMGSA Council representative, as well as for 

election to their departmental graduate students’ association’s executive positions. 
b. Membership of Council shall be terminated automatically when a Councillor’s term has expired.  A 

member can return to Council if they are once again democratically chosen by their department. 

c. Departmental representation can be shared by up to two Councillors from a single department so long as 

both Councillors meet the requirements listed above.  Regardless of the number of representatives, each 

department is entitled to only one vote.  Should multiple representatives from a department attend a 

meeting, only one holds the vote; the others are automatically considered non-voting members. 

d. If a Councillor is unable to attend Council, they may send a proxy from their department.  The Chair 

should receive written notice of any proxy prior to the Council meeting. 

i. Prior to the meeting of Council, proxy forms must be provided to the Chair and contain a 

signature or digital signature in the form of a known email address: one that is registered with 

the UMGSA or the University of Manitoba.  

e. Each of the following groups shall be considered as single departments: 

i. All students enrolled in the program leading to the degree of Master of Education at Saint 

Boniface College. 

ii. All students enrolled in an interdisciplinary program of the Faculty of Graduate Studies. 

iii. All students in departments of low enrollment who may choose to amalgamate as one 

department body. 

 

 

Article IV: Roles and Responsibilities of Council  
 
1. Role of Council  

a. Council shall have authority to determine the policy and practices of the UMGSA, as well as to approve 

or disallow: 

i. the annual budget of the UMGSA; 

ii. all grants made by the UMGSA; 

iii. all donations made by the UMGSA in excess of $250.00 for any one donee; 

iv. the election process of members of the Executive Committee; 

v. awards given by the UMGSA; 

vi. the Chair of every standing or ad hoc committee established by the UMGSA; 

vii. appointment of any representative of the UMGSA on any other board, committee or 

organization, internal or external. 

2. Executive Duties to Council 



36 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

a. The Executive shall be responsible to the Council for the day-to-day workings and emergency decisions 

required for the UMGSA. 

b. The Executive must prepare an annual budget for the UMGSA. This budget must be presented to Council 

in May for approval. 

c. The Executive must respect the fiscal constraints in the budget as approved by Council. 

d. In the event that a budget for the current fiscal year is not approved by Council, the Executive must 

respect the fiscal constraints in the budget approved by Council in the previous year, until a new budget 

is passed. 

3. Committees’ Responsibilities to Council 

a. Each Committee of the UMGSA shall report to Council on the schedule laid out in the “Committees” 

section of this document. 

i. The Report shall provide information on the activities and intentions of the Committee in 

writing. 

ii. Within the Report, the Committee may provide motions for consideration by Council. 

1. Motions will be accompanied by any pertinent information Council may require to 

make a balanced decision. 

b. Each Committee of the UMGSA shall accept the mandate and duties set by Council, and will report back 

on any matters related to Council requests. 

4. Council’s Responsibilities to the Committees of the UMGSA: 

a. Council will hear and accept the reports of the Committees, both Standing and Ad-hoc, of the UMGSA. 

b. Council will consider and vote on motions brought forward by the Committees of the UMGSA. 

c. Council will send recommendations or mandates to the Committees of the UMGSA.  



37 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

EXECUTIVE 
 
 

Article V: Executive Roles and Responsibilities 

1. Assumption of responsibilities and term of office for the Executive and Council: 

a. Executive members shall assume office May 1st. 

b. GSA Senators shall assume responsibility with the respective bodies in accordance to Senate bylaws.  

c. Each Council representative shall assume office at the first regular Council meeting following the 

departmental selection.  

d. The term of office of each Executive and Council member shall be one year. 

2.  Leaves of Absence: 

a. Authorized leaves of absence (ALA) are paid leaves of absence.  

b. They shall not exceed 3 weeks per leave, and are limited to 2 leaves per term of office and should be 

available by email in order to be paid.  

c. ALAs shall be authorized by the Executive Committee and reported in the Executive reports at the next 

scheduled Council meeting. 

3. All Executives shall perform the following duties: 

a. Post and keep a minimum of 2 regular office hours per week, between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except 

when absent due to sickness, travel or other reasonable eventualities, and see that notice is posted and 

alternative hours are provided whenever the regular hours cannot be fulfilled. 

b. Attend all UMGSA Executive and Council meetings and present a written report at each UMGSA 

Council meeting. Provide to the UMGSA Council a written list of all internal and external meetings 

attended, noting scheduled meetings that the Executive was unable to attend, and a record of office hours 

maintained. 

c. Serve on and chair committees as specified in the “Committees” section of this document. 

d. Perform other tasks as assigned by the UMGSA Executive or Council.  

e. Submit all official UMGSA documents to the Office Manager or Assistant, including but not limited to 

all Meeting Agendas and Minutes, Attendance sheets, and Reports.  Submit all these documents 

promptly, with sufficient time for the Office Manager or Assistant to review them, check the documents 

for any errors, and where appropriate ensure a consistent format, particularly before any are sent out with 

monthly Council documents. 

f. Failure to attend 2 or more UMGSA Executive meetings without good reason and sending regrets, or 

failure to attend 2 or more UMGSA Council meetings without good reason and sending regrets, shall 

also constitute gross negligence. 

4. The President shall perform the following duties: 

a. Supervise the day-to-day business of the UMGSA. 

b. Have signing authority for the UMGSA. 

c. Be the official spokesperson for the UMGSA. 

d. Manage staff relations.  

e. Attend all meetings of the UMGSA. 

f. Sit on all internal committees of the UMGSA. 

g. Serve on the Faculty of Graduate Studies Executive Committee and Council. 

h. Serve on, or provide designates to serve on, committees of the Faculty of Graduate Studies, both 

permanent and ad-hoc. 

i. Serve on, or find designates for, University committees. 

j. Coordinate appointments to internal and external committees, seeking ratification from Council as 

appropriate. 

k. Provide names of all graduate students who serve on such committees to the Vice-President Finance and 

Administration regarding recognition by the Student Records Office. 

l. Be prepared to perform duties of the Vice-President Finance and Administration, Vice- President 

Services and Support and Vice-President Academic in case of illness schedule conflict, etc., on an 

interim basis.  



38 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

5. The Vice-President Finance and Administration shall perform the following duties: 

a. Have signing authority for the UMGSA. 

b. Oversee the UMGSA Student Planner content development and advertising for the following school 

year. The Vice-President Finance and Administration will collaborate with UMGSA Office Staff who 

contributes graphic, layout and printing. 

c. Act as joint authority and share responsibility with the President for the daily affairs of the UMGSA. 

d. Perform duties of the President in case of illness, schedule conflict, resignation, etc., on an interim basis. 

e. Approve the names of graduate students serving as active participants on UMGSA committees upon 

confirmation of participation.  

f. Attend all UMGSA Executive and Council meetings and present a written report at each Council 

meeting. Provide to each UMGSA Council meeting a written list of all internal and external meetings 

attended, noting scheduled meetings the Vice-President Finance and Administration was unable to 

attend, and a record of office hours maintained. 

g. Supervise the keeping of all necessary financial records of the UMGSA, including but not limited to 

bills, cheque books and monthly accounting. 

h. Submit the budget prepared by the Executive to Council for its approval by the May Council meeting.  

i. Present bi-annual financial reports to Council, to be given at Council meetings held before December 1 

and before May 1 of each academic year.  

j. Submit the financial records of the UMGSA for an annual audit upon notice from Council. 

k. Ensure financial records are available to any Council member, upon arrangement.  

l. Coordinate the process of awarding of regular and special UMGSA grants, subject to approval by 

UMGSA Council.  

6. The Vice-President Services and Support shall perform the following duties:  

a. Have signing authority for the UMGSA.  

b. Serve, or find a designate, as the official representative of the UMGSA in external matters pertaining to 

the relationship of the UMGSA with other graduate and university student associations. 

c. Serve as the official representative of the UMGSA, on behalf of the President, at meetings, that are 

delegated with proper discussion and agreement by the Vice-President Services and Support on the 

University Campus and its affiliates. 

d. Implement the UMGSA Communications Policy. 

e. Liaise with coalition partners and external organizations as representative for the UMGSA.  

f. Handle UMGSA outreach events. 

g. Act as a representative at external events.  

h. Liaise with the government and the public at large.  

i. Collaborate with the Vice-President Finance and Administration on the UMGSA Student Planner.  

j. Handle planning and organization of UMGSA Orientation socials. 

k. Handle planning and organization of UMGSA Orientation lectures, external relations, and presentations. 

l. Maintain authority of the development and implementation of social, cultural, and sporting events that 

may be held by the UMGSA – such as intermural sports, socials, visual art events, etc. 

7. The Vice-President Academic shall perform the following duties:  

a. Have signing authority for the UMGSA. 

b. Serve as a UMGSA Senator. 

c. Co-Chair the Student Senate Caucus, unless designated otherwise. 

d. Advocate for students on academic issues.  

e. Plan the UMGSA Awards Luncheon. 

f. Organize academic workshops and the speaker series events held on campus. 

g. Act as Liaison between the UMGSA and the Faculty of Graduate Studies and serve on the Faculty of 

Graduate Studies Executive Committee and Council.  

h. Assume responsibility on matters of University discipline as they concern the membership of the 

UMGSA and sit on any Local Disciplinary Committee in the capacity of Student Advocate.  

i. Act in an advisory function to the Office of Student Advocacy on behalf of graduate students. Attend 

educational seminars on advocacy and appeals training conducted by the Office of Student Advocacy.  

8. The HSGSA President shall perform the following duties:  

a. Serve as liaison and UMGSA advocate for Health Sciences graduate students. 



39 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

b. Work with the Vice-President Academic and Vice-President Services and Support to serve as advocate 

for Health Sciences graduate students to the University administration and other bodies. 

c. Serve on the Faculty of Medicine Sub-Council of the Faculty of Graduate Studies. 

d. Act, or appoint a designate to act, as the UMGSA's representative on all Health Sciences committees or 

boards when so requested by those bodies. Forward names to UMGSA Council for approval as 

appropriate. 

e. Provide names of all graduate students who serve on Health Sciences committees to the Vice-President 

Finance and Administration for confirmation of student participation. 

9. Each Senator of the UMGSA shall perform the following duties: 

a. Attend all Senate and Student Senate Caucus meetings. 

b. Serve on at least one Senate Committee. 

c. Represent the interests of all graduate students and the UMGSA to the Senate and on Senate Committees. 

d. Ensure that one of the UMGSA Senators is in attendance at each HSGSA Council meeting. 

e. Work with other UMGSA Senators to ensure a Senators' Report is written and presented at each UMGSA 

Council meeting. 

f. Serve on at least two internal committees. 

Failure to attend or to designate a proxy to attend 2 or more Senate meetings and/or Student Senate 

Caucus meetings shall constitute gross negligence.  
 
 
Article VI: Conflict Resolution Procedure 

1. In the event of a conflict means should be taken for resolution including but not limited to: 

a. Initial face to face dialogue between conflicting parties 

b. Mediation efforts internal to the UMGSA Executive 

c. Introduction of the conflict to UMGSA Council for debate and dialogue on the way forward 

2. In the event that the conflict has not been resolved by the protocols outlined in IV.a. impeachment of an 

Executive’s position can be considered.  

3. The procedure for impeachment is as follows: 

a. Mediation efforts conducted by a party external to the UMGSA Executive as mandated by the UMGSA 

Council 

b. Formation of a commission for a fact-finding mission carried out by the Executive Review Committee 

or other delegated members of Council  

c. Five students, who are not members of either campus’ Association’s Executive, must provide in writing 

their grievances and clear documentation of the steps taken to resolve the conflict.   



40 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

COMMITTEES 

 

 

Article VII — Standing Committees 

1. Awards Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The Vice-President Academic of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The President of the UMGSA. 

iii. The Vice-President Services and Support of the UMGSA. 

iv. One HSGSA designate. 

v. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

vi. The Dean of the Faculty of Graduate Studies, or designate. 

vii. No fewer than eight (8) representatives of the UMGSA comprised from each of the following 

disciplines: 

1. Humanities: i.e. History, English, Philosophy, French and Spanish, Religion, German, 

Icelandic, Near Eastern and Judaic Studies, Slavic Studies, Classics, etc. 

2. Social Sciences: i.e. Economics, Psychology, Sociology, Anthropology, Geography, 

Political Studies, etc. 

3. Natural and Agricultural Sciences: i.e. Geological Sciences, Human Ecology, 

Mathematics, Statistics, Microbiology, Chemistry, Physics, Biological Sciences and 

Agriculture, etc. 

4. Professional Studies: i.e. Administrative Studies, Computer Science, Engineering, 

Education, Architecture, Law, Medicine, Dentistry, Pharmacy, Social Work, etc. 

viii. No department can have a representative for more than two consecutive years.  

b. Mandate 

i. Select the Graduate Teaching Award. 

ii. Select the UMGSA’s Awards for full-time Master’s students, UMGSA’s Award for a full-time 

Doctoral student, and the UMGSA’s Awards for part-time Master’s or Doctoral students. 

iii. Organize and put on the UMGSA Awards luncheon where: 

iv. The Graduate Teaching Award will be presented 

v. Recipients will present their research, or some portion thereof 

vi. All members are to be invited. 

vii. Conduct an annual review of Article IV.IV of the Financial Policy and Procedure Manual for 

presentation at the April meeting of the Bylaws and Policy Committee. 

viii. The purpose of the review is to ensure that: 

1. All documents and forms published by the Awards Committee are current to the 

upcoming granting year. 

2. No discrepancies exist between applications and their governing subsections within 

bylaw 2.11. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Awards Committee shall meet in June following the UMGSA Council’s ratification of the 

Awards Committee to start the awards selection process. 

ii. At that time, the Committee shall determine a meeting schedule for each academic term. 

iii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting Authority 

i. The Chairperson will report to the Council at each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an 

update on Awards Committee. 

ii. The Chairperson will put together a report to be submitted to the Finance Committee in order 

to assess the expenses of the Awards Committee’s luncheon and awards. 

2. Bylaws and Policy Committee 



41 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

a. Membership 

i. The Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The President of the UMGSA. 

iii. One HSGSA designate. 

iv. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

v. The Executive-at-Large as a non-voting resource member.  

vi. No fewer than six representatives of the UMGSA, with at least one representative from each of 

the following disciplines: 

1. Humanities: i.e. History, English, Philosophy, French and Spanish, Religion, German, 

Icelandic, Near Eastern and Judaic Studies, Slavic Studies, Classics, etc. 

2. Social Sciences: i.e. Economics, Psychology, Sociology, Anthropology, Geography, 

Political Studies, etc. 

3. Natural and Agricultural Sciences: i.e. Chemistry, Physics, Human Ecology, 

Mathematics, Microbiology, Biological Sciences and Agriculture, Statistics, 

Geological Sciences, etc. 

4. Professional Studies: i.e. Administrative Studies, Computer Science, Engineering, 

Education, Architecture, Law, Medicine, Dentistry, Pharmacy, Social Work, etc. 

b. Mandate 

i. Develop and maintain all legislative documents for the UMGSA. 

ii. Develop and maintain the following: 

1. Legislation (including the Bylaws and the Constitution). 

2. Policy (including the Financial Policy Manual). 

3. Administration (including a Terms of Reference for Non-GSA Committees). 

4. Develop and maintain all legislative documents for the UMGSA. 

iii. Present an annual review of the Bylaws and Policy Manuals at the March meeting of Council. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Bylaws and Policy Committee shall meet in September and in January to determine a 

meeting schedule for each academic term. 

ii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. The Chairperson shall report to Council at each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an 

update on Bylaws and Policy Committee activities. 

3. Services and Support Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The Vice-President Services and Support of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The President of the UMGSA. 

iii. The Vice-President Academic of the UMGSA. 

iv. One HSGSA designate. 

v. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

vi. No fewer than four representatives of the UMGSA, to include: 

1. No fewer than two Councillors of the UMGSA. 

2. No fewer than two non-Councillors members of the UMGSA 

b. Mandate 

i. To implement Services and Support on behalf of Council. 

ii. To organize and put on academic events, including but not limited to the UMGSA Speaker 

Series and the UMGSA Seminar Series. 

iii. To organize and put on non-academic events, including but not limited to Welcome Back Week 

/ Orientation. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Services and Support Committee will meet a minimum of once per month.  

ii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 



42 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

i. The Chairperson shall report to the Council at each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an 

update on Services and Support Committee activities. 

4. Events Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The Vice-President Services and Support of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The President of the UMGSA. 

iii. One HSGSA designate. 

iv. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

v. No fewer than four representatives of the UMGSA, to include: 

1. No fewer than two Councillors of the UMGSA. 

2. No fewer than two non-Councillors members of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. To organize and put on events including but not limited to social, sports, and other events put 

forth by the UMGSA. 

ii. To organize the Holiday Hamper Drive, with or without assistance from other organizations. 

iii. To organize and put on UMGSA Orientation services and events in the months of September 

and January. 

iv. To review items related to UMGSA clubs, as per the “Clubs” section of this document. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Events Committee will meet a minimum of once per month. 

ii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. The Chairperson shall report to the Council at each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an 

update on Events Committee activities. 

 

5. Election Committee 

a. Membership 

i. Five members of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The Elections Committee shall be struck by Council prior to the January meeting of Council. 

ii. The Elections Committee shall vote to select a committee chairperson from its membership 

prior to the January meeting of Council. This chairperson cannot serve as CRO or DRO. 

iii. The Elections Committee shall operate in accordance with the Election and Referendum 

Manual. 

iv. No one shall be eligible to run for any Executive position in a UMGSA Election while they are 

a member of the Elections Committee. 

v. The Elections Committee shall vote to select from its membership one person to serve as the 

Chief Returning Officer (CRO) for any UMGSA Elections and Referenda, as well as one person 

to serve as the Deputy Returning Officer (DRO). 

vi. The CRO and DRO do not participate as members of the Elections Committee during any 

appeal proceedings. 

vii. The CRO and DRO shall have the duty to ensure that all those participating in any UMGSA 

Election follow the policies and procedures as stipulated in the Election and Referendum 

Manual. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Elections Committee shall vote to select the committee chairperson, the CRO, and the DRO 

prior to the January meeting of Council, either in person, or by email. 

ii. The Elections Committee will meet and conduct its proceedings in accordance with the Election 

and Referendum Manual. The Committee will adhere to the timelines and deadlines stipulated 

therein.  

iii. The Committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting’s attendance sheet 

those members of the Committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 



43 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

i. The Committee chair will report the activities and decisions made by the Elections Committee 

to Council during and immediately subsequent to the period(s) in which the Committee has 

been active. 

ii. The CRO shall report to Council as stipulated in the Election and Referendum Manual. 

6. Executive Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The President of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA. 

iii. The Vice-President Services and Support of the UMGSA. 

iv. The Vice-President Academic of the UMGSA. 

v. The HSGSA President. 

vi. Three Senators of the UMGSA. 

vii. The Executive-at-Large as a non-voting resource member. 

b. Mandate 

i. Operate in accordance the “Executive” section of this document. 

ii. Review all documents to be submitted to Council. 

iii. Refer items to the relevant Committee when deemed appropriate. 

iv. Refer items directly to Council when deemed appropriate. 

v. Set the agenda for each Council meeting. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Executive Committee shall meet a minimum of once per month.  

ii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. Where not explicitly outlined through the agenda, the Chairperson shall report to Council at 

each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an update on Committee activities. 

7. Finance Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The President of the UMGSA. 

iii. The Vice-President Services and Support of the UMGSA. 

iv. One HSGSA designate. 

v. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

vi. The Executive at Large as a non-voting resource member.  

vii. A minimum of four representatives of the UMGSA, with no fewer than one representative from 

each of the following disciplines: 

1. Humanities: i.e. History, English, Philosophy, French and Spanish, Religion, German, 

Icelandic, Near Eastern and Judaic Studies, Slavic Studies, Classics, etc. 

2. Social Sciences: i.e. Economics, Psychology, Sociology, Anthropology, Geography, 

Political Studies, etc. 

3. Natural and Agricultural Sciences: i.e. Geological Sciences, Human Ecology, 

Mathematics, Statistics, Microbiology, Chemistry, Physics, Biological Sciences and 

Agriculture, etc. 

4. Professional Studies: i.e. Administrative Studies, Computer Science, Engineering, 

Education, Pharmacy, Architecture, Law, Medicine, Dentistry, Social Work, etc. 

b. Mandate 

i. Oversee the disbursement of grants and donations for the UMGSA.  

ii. Provide monthly reports to Council on the finances of the UMGSA, including spending and 

credit card reports. 

iii. Make policy recommendations regarding the “Finance” section of this document and the design 

of all grant and donation application forms. 

iv. Ensure that: 

1. All documents and forms published by the Committee are current to the upcoming 

granting year. 



44 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

2. No discrepancies exist between applications and their governing subsections within 

the “Finance” section of this document. 

v. To review reports submitted by Executive members who coordinate UMGSA events using 

UMGSA funds. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Finance Committee will meet a minimum of once per month. 

ii. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. The Chairperson shall report to the Council at each scheduled monthly meeting to provide an 

update on Finance Committee activities. 

8. Executive Review Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The President of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA. 

iii. One HSGSA designate. 

iv. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

v. The Executive-at-Large as a non-voting resource member. 

vi. No fewer than six representatives of the UMGSA, with at least one representative from each 

the following disciplines: 

1. Humanities: i.e. History, English, Philosophy, French and Spanish, Religion, German, 

Icelandic, Near Eastern and Judaic Studies, Slavic Studies, Classics, etc. 

2. Social Sciences: i.e. Economics, Psychology, Sociology, Anthropology, Geography, 

Political Studies, etc. 

3. Natural and Agricultural Sciences: i.e. Geological Sciences, Human Ecology, 

Mathematics, Statistics, Microbiology, Chemistry, Physics, Biological Sciences and 

Agriculture, etc. 

4. Professional Studies: i.e. Administrative Studies, Computer Science, Engineering, 

Education, Architecture, Law, Medicine, Dentistry, Pharmacy, Social Work, etc. 

b. Mandate 

i. Address all matters requiring ethical consideration within the UMGSA. 

ii. Review and provide Council with direction on any material or issue Council calls into question 

regarding conduct or policy. 

iii. Oversee the UMGSA’s continued development of, and adherence to, the UMGSA Award terms 

of reference in order to ensure the best distribution as more monies become available, with 

special consideration given to developing new award categories. 

iv. Form an Executive Review Subcommittee to perform the bi-annual review of the current 

Executive (see 8.e.i-xi). 

v. Hiring of UMGSA Employees 

1. The Executive Review Committee will conduct the hiring of the UMGSA employees. 

2. The President and Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA shall 

formalize employment postings and criteria for a position, with final approval given 

by the Executive Review Committee before being released. 

3. The President and Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA shall 

formalize the contract for UMGSA employees, with final approval given on the 

contract’s terminology by the Executive Review Committee 2015.04.22 UMGSA 

Council Meeting Minutes 27 

4. The Executive Review Committee will require employees to sign a Confidentiality 

Agreement with the UMGSA due to the information a UMGSA employee will have 

access to. 

5. Any member of the Executive Review Committee who knows a possible contender 

for an employee position must declare a conflict of interest. 

6. Preference for UMGSA employee positions will be given to a University of Manitoba 

student who is a current Masters or Doctoral graduate student. 



45 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

7. The Executive Committee will be given the ability to review the work of the UMGSA 

employees rather than the UMGSA executive in order to avoid bias and possible 

conflict-of-interest. 

8. The Executive Review Committee must be considered in the termination of employees 

in order to provide security to employees who may report inappropriate behaviour 

from members of the UMGSA executive, council, and/or staff.  

c. Meetings 

i. The Executive Review Committee shall meet in May to determine a meeting schedule for each 

academic term. 

ii. The Committee shall meet at least twice per academic term. 

iii. The Executive Review Committee shall determine its own meeting parameters and schedule. 

iv. The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent without 

sending regrets. 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. The Chairperson of the Executive Review Committee shall report to Council at each scheduled 

monthly meeting to provide an update on Committee activities. 

e. Executive Review Subcommittee 

i. The Executive Review Committee shall meet in May to form the Executive Review 

Subcommittee. 

ii. The Executive Review Subcommittee shall include only those six non-Executive members 

outlined in the membership section. 

iii. The HSGSA designate should have no standing on either the Executive or the HSGSA 

Executive; that member is to be included in the Executive Review Subcommittee. 

iv. The Chairperson of the Executive Review Subcommittee will be elected at the April Council 

meeting, to take office beginning in May. 

v. The Executive Review Subcommittee shall perform three reviews of the Executive, with special 

regard to attendance and participation. 

vi.  The first review will cover from May 1 to August 31 and will be presented at the October 

Council meeting by the Chairperson of the Executive Review Subcommittee. 

vii. The second review will cover from September 1 to November 30 and will be presented at the 

February Council meeting by the Chairperson of the Executive Review Subcommittee. 

2015.04.22 UMGSA Council Meeting Minutes 28 

viii. The third review will cover from December 1 to March 31 and will be presented at the April 

Council meeting by the Chairperson of the Executive Review Subcommittee. 

ix. The Executive Review Subcommittee will make recommendations to Council for the 

development and maintenance of the review process. 

x. The Chairperson of the Executive Review Committee will obtain all official UMGSA and 

HSGSA documents required for each review of the Executive directly from the Office Manager 

or Assistant. These documents will include, but are not limited to, all Executive and Council 

Meeting Minutes, all Council, Committee and Executive Attendance sheets, and all Council & 

Committee Meeting Agendas. 

xi. It is the responsibility of both the President of the UMGSA, as well as of the HSGSA President, 

to ensure that all official UMGSA and HSGSA documents required for each review of the 

Executive have been submitted to the Office Manager or Assistant before the beginning of each 

review. 

xii. The Chairperson of the Executive Review Committee will obtain all Executive Self & Peer 

Review Forms from the Executives directly, to maintain confidentiality. 

 

 

Article VIII: Ad-Hoc Committees 

1. Council may call for an Ad-Hoc Committee through a regular motion of council with a simple majority.   

a. When Council calls for an Ad-Hoc Committee, Council must declare: 

i. committee composition 



46 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

ii. mandate,  

iii. meeting frequency 

iv. reporting and authority 

2. Selection Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The President of the UMGSA as Chairperson. 

ii. The Vice-President Finance and Administration of the UMGSA. 

iii. One HSGSA designate. 

iv. One Senator of the UMGSA. 

v. Three representatives of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. A Selection Committee shall be struck by Council when there is to be a decision made as to the 

hiring or appointment of UMGSA employees. 

ii. The Selection Committee shall hire UMGSA employees except those otherwise specified in the 

Bylaws.  

iii. Subsequent mandates as per the intentions of Council shall be determined when the Selection 

Committee is struck. 

iv. The Selection Committee shall be dissolved by Council subsequent to the execution of their 

duties. 

c. Meetings 

i. The Selections Committee shall meet as required for the hiring of UMGSA employees. 

The committee chair shall, by the end of each meeting, list on that meeting's attendance sheet 

those members of the committee that had sent regrets, as well as those that were absent 

without sending regrets 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. The Chairperson of the Selection Committee shall submit the Selection Committee’s final 

decision to Council for approval at the first meeting of Council subsequent to the Selection 

Committee’s final decision. 

ii. The Chairperson of the Selection Committee shall submit a report on the progress of the 

Selection Committee to Council only in the event that the Selection Committee requires an 

amendment or dissolution of a Council mandate in order to successfully execute the duties of 

the Selection Committee, or should the mandate from Council require such report(s) of 

progress. 

Article IX: External Committees 

All UMGSA representation on external committees is mandate by the committee’s bylaws and guidelines.  This list 

is not exhaustive, and does not supersede the bylaws of any external committee on which the UMGSA holds 

representation. 

 

1. Graduate Studies Faculty Council 

a. Membership 

i. Fourteen members of the UMGSA to include: 

1. The UMGSA President as an ex-officio member;  

2. The UMGSA Vice-President Academic as an ex-officio member;  

3. One UMGSA Council representative;  

4. One non-Council representative of the UMGSA;  

5. Two representatives of the UMGSA from Humanities departments;  

6. Two representatives of the UMGSA from Social Science departments;  

7. Two representatives of the UMGSA from Health Sciences departments;  

8. Two representatives of the UMGSA from Agricultural Science departments;  

9. Two representatives of the UMGSA from Natural Science departments. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the names of the fourteen members of the UMGSA 

selected to sit on the Graduate Studies Faculty Council to the Faculty of Graduate Studies by 

July 1. 



47 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

ii. The Graduate Studies Faculty Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies to 

fill vacant member positions at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one year. 

iv. No representative shall be elected for more than two consecutive terms. 

v. Members of the Graduate Studies Faculty Council shall be entitled to attend all general 

meetings of the Faculty of Graduate Studies and have full rights of participation therein. 

2. Faculty of Graduate Studies Executive Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA President as an ex-officio member. 

ii. The UMGSA Vice-President Academic as an ex-officio member. 

iii. One member of the UMGSA selected from the membership of the Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Council. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the names of the three members of the UMGSA selected 

to sit on the Faculty of Graduate Studies Executive Committee to the Faculty of Graduate 

Studies by July 1. 

ii. The Faculty of Graduate Studies Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies 

to fill vacant member position at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one year. 

3. Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals Committee 

a. Membership 

i. Four members of the UMGSA as full members of the Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals 

Committee. 

ii. Four members of the UMGSA as alternate members for the Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Appeals Committee. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the names of the four members of the UMGSA selected 

to sit on and the four alternates for those members to the Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals 

Committee to the Faculty of Graduate Studies by July 1. 

ii. The Faculty of Graduate Studies Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies 

to fill vacant member position at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one-year term. 

iv. The Vice-President Academic is not eligible for the Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals 

Committee. 

v. No department is to have more than one representative as either a member on or alternate 

member for the Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals Committee. 

4. Faculty of Graduate Studies Awards Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA Vice-President Academic. 

ii. One representative of the UMGSA from a Social Science or Humanities department. 

iii. One representative of the UMGSA from a Natural Science or Engineering department. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the names of the three members of the UMGSA selected 

to sit on the Faculty of Graduate Studies Appeals Committee to the Faculty of Graduate Studies 

by July 1. 

ii. The Faculty of Graduate Studies Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies 

to fill vacant member position at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one-year term. 

5. Faculty of Graduate Studies Guidelines and Policy Committee 

a. Membership 

i. One representative of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the name the member of the UMGSA selected to sit on 

the Faculty of Graduate Studies Guidelines and Policy Committee to the Faculty of Graduate 

Studies by July 1. 



48 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

ii. The Faculty of Graduate Studies Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies 

to fill vacant member position at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one year. 

6. Faculty of Graduate Studies Programs and Planning Committee  

a. Membership 

i. One representative of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President is to forward the name of the member of the UMGSA selected to sit on 

the Faculty of Graduate Studies Programs and Planning Committee to the Faculty of Graduate 

Studies by July 1. 

ii. The Faculty of Graduate Studies Council will vote to authorize the Dean of Graduate Studies 

to fill vacant member position at the first meeting subsequent to that date. 

iii. Each representative shall be elected for a term of one-year term. 

7. Senate  

a. Membership 

i. Three UMGSA Senators as voting members of Senate. 

ii. The UMGSA President, or designate, as an ex-officio assessor to Senate. 

b. Mandate 

i. In the event that a designate is selected, that designate shall be the UMGSA Vice-President 

Academic. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the names of the members of the UMGSA selected to 

serve on Senate to the Office of the University President in April. 

8. Senate Executive Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA President, or designate, as an ex-officio assessor to Senate. 

b. Mandate 

i. In the event that a designate is selected, that designate shall be the UMGSA Vice-President 

Academic. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the name of the member of the UMGSA selected to serve 

on Senate Executive Committee to the Office of the University President in April. 

9. Senate Committee on Academic Computing 

a. Membership 

i. Two representatives of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President shall forward the names of the members of the Senate Committee on 

Academic Computing to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

ii. Each representative shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

10. Senate Committee on Animal Care 

a. Membership 

i. One representative of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President shall forward the name of the member of the Senate Committee on 

Animal Care to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

ii. The representative shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

11. Senate Committee on the Ethics of Research Involving Human Subjects 

a. Membership 

i. One representative of the UMGSA. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President shall forward the name of the member of the Senate Committee on the 

Ethics of Research Involving Human Subjects to the Student Nominating Committee in 

September. 

ii. The representative shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

12. Senate Committee on Instruction and Evaluation 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA Vice-President Academic. 

ii. Up to three additional members of the UMGSA. 



49 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

b. Mandate 

i. UMSU and the UMGSA share four seats on the Senate Committee on Instruction and 

Evaluation, of which a minimum of one is mandated to the UMGSA. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the name(s) of the member(s) of the Senate Committee 

on Instruction and Evaluation to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

iii. The representative(s) shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

13. Senate Committee on Libraries 

a. Membership 

i. One member of the UMGSA from a Social Science or Humanities department. 

ii. One member of the UMGSA from a Natural Science department. 

b. Mandate 

i. One of the two above representatives shall be a UMGSA Senator. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the names of the members of the Senate Committee on 

Libraries to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

iii. Each representative shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

14. Senate Planning and Priorities Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA President, or designate. 

b. Mandate 

i. In the event that a designate is selected, that designate shall be a UMGSA Senator. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the name of the member of the Senate Planning and 

Priorities Committee to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

15. Senate Committee on University Research 

a. Membership 

i. One member of the UMGSA from a Social Science or Humanities department. 

ii. One member of the UMGSA from a Natural Science department. 

b. Mandate 

i. One of the two above representatives shall be the UMGSA Vice-President Academic. 

ii. The UMGSA President shall forward the names of the members of the Senate Committee on 

University Research to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

16. Joint Senate Committee on Master’s Programs 

a. Membership 

i. One representative of the UMGSA enrolled in a Joint Master’s Program between the University 

of Manitoba and the University of Winnipeg. 

b. Mandate 

i. The UMGSA President shall forward the name of the member of the Joint Senates Committee 

on Master’s Programs to the Student Nominating Committee in September. 

ii. The representative shall have the option of serving a two-year term. 

17. Budget Advisory Committee 

a. Membership 

i. The UMGSA President as an ex-officio member. 

b. Mandate 

i. There is no mandate at this time. 

18. Student Senate Caucus 

a. Membership 
i. The Student Senate Caucus shall be composed of: 

a.  The UMGSA Vice-President Academic, as Co-Chairperson;  

b.  The UMSU Vice-President Advocacy, as Co-Chairperson;  

c.  The UMGSA President; 

d.  The UMSU President;  

e.  All undergraduate and graduate student members of the University of Manitoba 

Senate, the University Discipline Committee, and all Senate Committees. 

b. Mandate 

i. The mandate of the Student Senate Caucus shall be to provide an open forum for student 

senators to discuss the affairs of Senate and the Committees of Senate, facilitate the 

development of questions to be brought forward to Senate, and nominate members to the 



50 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

standing committees of Senate.  The mandate of the Student Senate Caucus shall also be to 

provide a coordinated effort for advocacy efforts and student representation on campus through 

regular meetings, discussions, and leadership. 

ii. The Student Senate Caucus shall determine the priorities and coordinate the activities of 

undergraduate and graduate student members of the following bodies:  

a.  The University of Manitoba Senate.  

b.  The University Discipline Committee;  

c.  All University of Manitoba Senate Committees 

iii. The Student Senate Caucus shall strive to keep students informed of important policy updates 

through means they determine to be most fitting. 

c. Meetings 
i. The meetings of the Student Senate Caucus should occur before every meeting of the University 

of Manitoba Senate. 

 

d. Reporting and Authority 

i. Reports shall be given from all bodies of student representation at Student Senate Caucus 

meetings to update individuals on current progress of objectives, new information presented, 

and any other pertinent information. 

ii. When appropriate, the UMGSA Vice-President Academic and/or the UMSU Vice-President 

Advocacy will present motions and/or policies proposed by the Student Senate Caucus to the 

University of Manitoba Senate, to the UMGSA Council, to the UMSU Board of Directors, 

and/or to any relevant committees related to any of these groups. 

iii. No action of the Student Senate Caucus is binding upon the Executives or the Council of the 

UMGSA, nor upon the Executives or the Board of UMSU.  



51 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

FINANCE 
 
 

Article X: Budget Guidelines 

1. The budget of the UMGSA must be presented to and approved by Council prior to May 31st of each year. 

The Executive will prepare the budget and provide it for review two weeks prior to the May Council meeting. 

a. Every month, the Executive must provide detailed spending reports to the Finance 

Committee. Finance will then provide a summary report of all UMGSA expenses and 

income at the Council meeting. 
b. Any documents provided to the Finance Committee may be requested by Council. 
c. All expenditures and reimbursements must be claimed within one month of the expense, and 

settled within one month of the claim. 
2. Amendment Procedures: Any adjustments to budget lines or future expenditures must be approved by 

Council with a two-thirds majority. 

 
 

Article XI: Honoraria 

1. The per-annum honorarium amount of UMGSA Executive members shall be as follows: 
a. President $15,500.00 CAD 
b. Vice-President Finance and Administration $12,000.00 

c. Vice-President Services and Support $12,000.00 

d. Vice-President Academic $12,000.00 

e. Senators $4,200.00 CAD each 

f. Executive-At-Large $9,300.00 CAD 

2. HSGSA Honoraria shall be paid through the UMGSA in the following amounts: 

a. President $12,000.00 CAD 

b. Vice-President Internal $4,200.00 CAD 

c. Vice-President External $4,200.00 CAD 

d. Vice-President Academic $4,200.00 CAD 

e. Vice-President Marketing and Events $4,200.00 CAD 

f. Vice-President St. Boniface $4,200.00 CAD 

3. Amounts shall be paid in twelve (12) equal monthly instalments for all UMGSA and HSGSA Executive 

members who are paid on a per-annum basis. 

4. Payment of honoraria is subject to payment of CPP and EI to Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) in accordance 

with CRA regulations. The statements will be issued to each Executive member in accordance with CRA 

regulations. 

5. All honoraria cheques shall be issued by the Fort Garry UMGSA office. 

 
 

Article XII: Grants and Awards 

I. Conference Grants 
The UMGSA, through the Finance Committee, will make funds available to University of Manitoba graduate students 

wishing to attend or present at conferences who do not have adequate resources to do so.  Conferences must advance 

the student's course of study.  Applications will be accepted throughout the year and processed by the Finance 

Committee on a monthly basis. Except in extenuating circumstances, the Finance Committee decisions can be 

appealed to a maximum of two times.  The resolution of any unresolved appeals that remain at the end of an Executive 

term will become the responsibility of the new Executive. 

1. General Regulations: 



52 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

a. Applicants must use the UMGSA Conference Grant Application form, including a completed budget 

section listing all sources of funding and permitted expenses.  In order to receive funding from the 

UMGSA, the applicant's total costs must exceed or meet the amount of the grant applied for.  

Applications for Conference Grants must be complete or they will not be considered. 

b. Applicants are required to provide a copy of their official conference registration or equivalent 

correspondence.  They must also provide a copy of their conference ID badge, as well as boarding passes 

or tickets for inter-city transportation, as proof of attendance. 

c. In order to qualify as a presenter, the applicant's presentation has to be listed on the official program.  A 

copy of the front page of the conference program, as well as the page where the presentation is listed, 

must both be submitted.  Equivalent correspondence is also acceptable. 

d. Applicants may only claim daily expenses for the official days of the conference, as well as two travel 

days for conferences outside of the applicant's city of residence.  Applicants will automatically be entitled 

to claim $65 per day for each of these eligible days.  These per diems cover food and in-city travel costs, 

as well as other incidental costs at the discretion of the applicant.  No receipts in support of per diems 

will be required. 

e. Permitted expenses which can be claimed are limited to the following: 

i. $65 per diems, for food, in-city travel costs, and incidental costs. 

ii. The cost of inter-city travel from the applicant's city of residence to and from the city where the 

conference is taking place.  The costs of economy air, train, or bus travel are permitted, 

including any associated fees.  If driving, only $0.43/km may be claimed to cover all related 

expenses including gas, and only the round-trip minimum driving distance between the 

applicant's home and the address of the conference venue may be claimed for travel mileage to 

and from the conference city.  Rental car expenses will only be permitted if the applicant 

provides evidence that economy air, train, and bus fares would all be more expensive. 

iii. Conference registration costs, including any related professional association fees, and any fees 

for conference-linked extras including technical tours, additional sessions, etc. 

iv. Printing costs for any posters or other materials in support of a presentation at a conference. 

v. Fees to obtain a travel visa to attend or present at a conference. 

vi. Travel Insurance for travel to a conference. 

f. Applicants must provide conversions to Canadian Dollars, and proof of exchange rates from the Bank of 

Canada for either the date of purchase or the date of the conference, for all expenses being claimed in 

foreign funds. 

g. Applicants are required to provide a basic translation into English of any foreign language receipts, 

making clear what the expense is, and any breakdowns of the parts of that expense if present. 

h. The maximum amounts available will be as follows: 

i. $750.00 for those giving presentations at conferences outside of Canada and the 48 

conterminous states of the USA 

ii. $600.00 for those attending conferences outside of Canada and the 48 conterminous states of 

the USA 

iii. $500.00 for those giving presentations within Canada or the 48 conterminous states of the USA 

iv. $400.00 for those attending conferences within Canada or the 48 conterminous states of the 

USA 

v. $200.00 for those giving presentations in their province of residence 

vi. $150.00 for those attending conferences in their province of residence 

vii. $100.00 for those giving presentations in their city of residence 

viii. $75.00 for those attending conferences in their city of residence 

i. No Applicant may receive Conference Grants totalling in excess of $750.00 from April 18 of one year 

to April 17 of the following year.  Multiple applications from one member could be successful, but the 

total amount cannot exceed $750.00 within that period of a year. 

j. All Conference Grants submitted between April 18 to April 30 will be included in the following fiscal 

year (May 1 to April 30). 

k. The Finance Committee reserves the right to investigate and verify information provided by applicants.  

This shall be noted on application forms in advance of the space reserved for an applicant's signature. 

l. Complete applications must be received by the UMGSA Office no later than exactly four months after 

the final official day of the conference. 

m. The applicant must declare their city of residence as a part of their application. 



53 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

n. Attendance and presentation at web conferences will be treated as conferences in the applicant’s city of 

residence. 

o. UMGSA funding for Conference Grants will only be awarded to a University of Manitoba Graduate 

Student.  Financial costs for friends and/or family who accompany the applicant to a conference will not 

be covered by the UMGSA. 

2. Conference Grant Applications may only be submitted by the attending or presenting student at an academic 

conference, symposium, workshop, or similar event.  Applications will not be accepted if the presentation or 

attendance is part of a job interview process. 

3. All expense claims, other than per diems, must be accompanied by the relevant receipts.  Expenses for which a 

receipt has been lost or misplaced will be reimbursed at the discretion of the UMGSA Finance Committee. 

4. Applicants must declare all funding sources and amounts which have been or will be provided in support of their 

presentation or attendance at the conference. 

5. If sharing any expenses with another person, the names of all those sharing particular expenses must be listed 

clearly on the application.  If sharing any expenses with another UMGSA Member who is also applying, the 

applications must be submitted together. 

 

II. Special Project Grants 
1. The UMGSA makes funds available for special projects, events or items, which could potentially benefit the 

graduate student population at the University of Manitoba. By way of example, past projects that received grants 

in this category include guest speakers, professional development workshops and graduate publications. Special 

Projects Grants cannot be used for: 

a. Socials 

b. Department publicity brochures 

c. Personal Funding for graduate students 

d. Travel to events 

e. Membership dues 

2. Applications will be accepted throughout the year by the Finance Committee of the UMGSA and be reviewed as 

follows: 

a. Applications must be received no later than one (1) week prior to the Finance Committee Meeting. 

b. The Finance Committee will bring forth their recommendations on Special Project Grants to the monthly 

UMGSA Council meeting, where Council can debate and ask for more detail on the decisions made by 

the Finance Committee. 

c. In situations where the Finance Committee lacks quorum, the Special Projects Grants will be put forth 

to Council at the next scheduled UMGSA Council Meeting. 

d. All applications must be received within four (4) months of the special project event. 
3. All proposals for individual, organization or department grants shall be considered by the Finance Committee 

if they meet the requirements outlined here and on the Special Project Grants Form (Appendix B). The 
Committee has the authority to debate each submission and vote on acceptance. Committee members must 
abstain from voting on grant requests sponsored by themselves or a unit to which they are affiliated. Any 
application that does not comply with the rules outlined in the Financial Policy Manual will be rejected, with 
opportunity given to resubmit a compliant application to the Finance Committee. 

a. Special Project Grants of $250.00 or less must submit all documents but will not be required to present 
to the Finance Committee. 

b. Recommendation for grants greater than $250.00 will require the applicant to present to the Finance 
Committee. Council has the authority to debate each submission and vote on acceptance. Presenters 
will be recommended to attend the following Council meeting to answer additional questions if 
required. 

4. General Regulations:  
a. Applications for grants must be complete or they will not be considered. 

b. All applications must include a budget that outlines all other sources of revenue and estimated expenses. 

c. Priority will be given to applications that will benefit the largest number of graduate students. Special 

consideration will be given to projects of extraordinary merit, to be evaluated by the Finance Committee. 

d. Recipients are required to provide a final budget within one month of the completion date stated in the 

application. 

e. Grants will not cover services already provided at the University. 



54 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

f. The maximum amount obtainable for any project is $500.00. 

g. Grants may not be used for University departmental operating expenses. The cheques can only be issued 

directly to a University UMGSA-departmental bank account or a graduate student affiliated group bank 

account. 

h. All individuals, organizations or departments receiving funds must acknowledge that they received 

funding from the UMGSA in any publications, broadcasts or advertisements arising from that grant. 

i. Recipients of special project grants are required to send a brief report of the event to the Vice-President 

Finance and Administration within one (1) month of the event, to be included in the Vice-President 

Finance and Administration’s next report to Council. 

j. The UMGSA will not use student funds for donations to external organizations but will help facilitate 

requests for fundraising. 

k. In unique situations, such as the death of a UMGSA student, the UMGSA Executive may decide on a 

donation, of no more than $250.00 CAD, on behalf of the UMGSA. Donations of up to a maximum of 

$500 may be recommended to Council for approval. 

 

III. Departmental Grants 
1. Every departmental graduate students’ association, which is represented on UMGSA Council is 

eligible to apply for a Departmental Grant. 
2. Completed Departmental Grant applications (Form 004) must be submitted to the UMGSA office 

no later than 4:00 pm on the following dates: November 1st to receive the December 
disbursement and April 1st to receive the April disbursement. Late applicants shall be penalized 
according to the following guideline: 

a. Applications one working day late shall be penalized 5%. 
b. Applications greater than one working day late, but less than five working days late, shall 

be penalized 10%. 
c. Applications greater than 5 working days late, but less than one full month late, shall be 

penalized 25%. 

d. Applications greater than one full month late shall not be considered. 

3. Completed application forms must include the following: 
a. The departmental association's name as it appears on bank account records. 

b. The name and address of the bank as it appears on bank account records. 
c. The account number as it appears on bank account records. 

d. The names of two officers with signing authority and the signature of the UMGSA 

departmental representative. 
e. To qualify for the April disbursement, the departmental representative shall submit the 

following: 
i. A report of expenditures and revenue up to March 1st of that fiscal year. 
ii. A brief annual report of the association’s events, activities and other 

business up to March 1st of that fiscal year. 
4. The Departmental Grant is calculated as follows for all departments: 

a. $20.00 per academic year for every graduate student paying student organization dues to 
the UMGSA and belonging to their departmental or program-based association. 

b. Fifty percent of the calculated Departmental Grant will be disbursed in December, with 
the remainder to be disbursed in April. 

5. Enrollment statistics provided by the Faculty of Graduate Studies are used to determine the number 
of graduate students in each department. Enrollment figures as of September 30 th will be used to 
calculate a projected fiscal enrollment. January 31st figures will be used as the actual enrollment 
for the fiscal year. 

6. To be eligible to receive a Departmental Grant, a Department's Representative must meet the 

following requirements: 
a. The UMGSA departmental representative, or designated proxy, must attend at least three (3) of 

the five (5) UMGSA Council Meetings held from May to November inclusive, in order to 
qualify for the December disbursement. For each additional council meeting missed, a 25% 
penalty shall be assessed. 

b. The UMGSA departmental representative, or designated proxy, must attend at least two (2) of 
the three (3) UMGSA Council Meetings held from December to March inclusive, in order to 



55 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

qualify for the April disbursement. For each additional council meeting missed, a 25% penalty 
shall be assessed. 

c. The departmental representative, or designated proxy, must be a member of a standing 
committee of the UMGSA and attend at least two-thirds (2/3) of the committee’s meetings. In 
the absence of two-thirds (2/3) attendance, the chair of the committee may recommend to 
consider committee obligations complete if the departmental representative, or proxy, has 
shown a dedication to the work of the committee. A 25% penalty shall be assessed for failing to 
meet the committee requirements. 

7. Attendance is determined by signature on the attendance sheet available at every Council or General 
Meeting. The departmental representative, or designated proxy, must sign the attendance sheet to be 
eligible for a Departmental Grant. 

a. In the event of additional meetings (e.g., Annual General Meeting, Special General 
Meetings, Council Retreat) the ratio will be adjusted accordingly. 

b. Attendance in a meeting is defined as being a minimum presence of 60% of the 
meeting time. 

c. In the event of repeated late attendance and/or early departures from meetings, 
penalties will be assessed on a case-by-case basis by the Vice-President Finance and 
Administration. 

 

IV. Awards 
I. Graduate Teaching Award 

1. The purpose of the award is to recognize those individuals who have made, in the estimate of their graduate 
students, a significant contribution to the teaching profession and graduate community. 

2. Eligibility 
a. Any member’s thesis advisor, seminar or course instructor, or professor with whom the 

member has conducted research is eligible if: 
b. The nominee is teaching or has taught a graduate level course during the current academic 

term. 
c. The nominee is not a registered student in the Faculty of Graduate Studies. 

3. The award will include a cash prize of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00 CAD), to be equally matched 
by the Faculty of Graduate Studies for a total of five hundred dollars ($500.00 CAD), and a scroll given at 
Fall Convocation during the following academic year to commemorate the honour. 

4. The Awards Committee will consider individuals who display a dedication to knowledge 
and sensitivity to their graduate students and the graduate student community. 

5. Assessment 
a. In order to properly assess the impact of the nominee, the Awards Committee requires 

that the nominating member provide the following: 
b. One (1) completed Graduate Teaching Award Form (Parts I & II). 
c. One (1) curriculum vitae that includes a selected list of graduate courses taught, a 

selected list of graduate students advised, and a selected list of graduate advisory 
committees. 

d. Two (2) letters of recommendation from current or former graduate students. 
e. Assessment will be undertaken by the UMGSA Awards Committee. 

6. Once an application has been successfully received by the UMGSA Vice-President Academic, all 
materials contained therein will be property of the UMGSA’s Awards Committee until two (2) 
months after the close of the competition, at which point all materials will be destroyed. 

7. The Vice-President Academic will notify all candidates of the results within five (5) working days 
of the final confirmation provided by the Financial Aid and Awards Office. 

8. Presentation 
a. The UMGSA shall host an Awards Luncheon where the monetary portion of the award 

will be presented. 
b. A scroll shall be given at the Fall Convocation of the following academic year. 

 

II. Graduate Student Awards 

1. The UMGSA confers peer-to-peer recognition of members who are currently not recognized by the University 
of Manitoba Graduate Fellowship or any national awards or granting bodies, including but not limited to: 

a. The Natural Sciences and Engineering Research Council (NSERC) 

b. The Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council (SSHRC) 



56 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

c. The Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR) 

d. The Manitoba Health Research Council (MHRC) 

e. The Manitoba Graduate Scholarship (MGS) 
2. The awards are designed to recognize the important contributions graduate students make to society through 

scholarship and community involvement. 
3. The awards have been made possible by the generous contribution of Dr. James Burns, a levy applied to all 

graduate students approved through a UMGSA referendum, and a contribution made by the Manitoba 
Scholarship and Bursary Initiative. 

4. Recipients must be registered in the academic session for which the awards are tenable in order to accept the 
award. 

5. Recipients must further meet the individual award criteria for the award applied for. 
6. Master’s Award 

a. Three (3) awards valued at $11,000 CAD, $8,000 CAD, and $6,000 CAD will be offered for each of 
the first, second, and third place selected award winners who: 

i. Are enrolled full-time in the Faculty of Graduate Studies at the University 
of Manitoba in a Master’s (not pre-Master’s) program; and 

ii. Will be registered as full-time Master’s students for the academic year it is 
proposed for; and 

iii. Have a minimum GPA of 3.5 based on credit hours completed at the 
University of Manitoba; and 

iv. Do not hold any major fellowships [including, but not limited to, NSERC, 
SSHRC, CIHR, MHRC, MGS, UMGF]; and 

v. Have contributed to society through scholarship and community 
involvement. 

7. Doctoral Award 
a. Two (2) awards valued at $13,000 CAD and $9,000 CAD will be offered for each of the first and 

second place selected award winners who: 
i. Are enrolled full-time in the Faculty of Graduate Studies at the University of Manitoba in a 

Doctoral program; and 
ii. Will be registered as full-time Doctoral students for the academic year it is proposed for; and 
iii. Have a minimum GPA of 3.5 based on credit hours completed at the University of Manitoba; 

and 
iv. Do not hold any major fellowships [including, but not limited to, NSERC, SSHRC, CIHR, 

MHRC, MGS, UMGF]; and 
v. Have contributed to society through scholarship and community involvement. 

b. Master’s students who are entering a Doctoral program will be eligible pending acceptance to the 
program. 

8. Part-Time Award 
a. One (1) award valued at $3,000 CAD will be offered to the selected award winner who: 

i. Is enrolled part-time in the Faculty of Graduate Studies at the University of Manitoba in either 
a Master’s (not pre-Master’s) or Doctoral program; and 

ii. Will be registered as a part-time Master’s (not pre-Master’s) or Doctoral student for the 
academic year it is proposed for; and 

iii. Has a minimum GPA of 3.5 based on credit hours completed at the University of Manitoba; 
and 

iv. Does not hold any major fellowships [including, but not limited to, NSERC, SSHRC, CIHR, 
MHRC, UMGF]; and 

v. Has contributed to society through scholarship and community involvement. 
9. Assessment 

a. In order to properly assess the impact of the applicant, the UMGSA requires that the applying member 

provide the following by May 25th (If May 25th falls on a weekend or holiday, the application deadline 

is automatically extended to the next business day): 
i. One (1) completed Graduate Student Award Form that includes a Statement of 

Intent that demonstrates how, through dedication to scholarship and community, 
the student has bridged academic theory and social practice in order to better serve 
the local, national, and/or international community. 

ii. One (1) curriculum vitae that outlines academic, employment and community 
service. 

iii. One (1) letter of recommendation from the student’s advisor or supervisor. 



57 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

iv. One (1) letter of recommendation from a person of the student’s choosing who 
can speak to their community involvement. 

b. Assessment will be undertaken by the Awards Committee. 
10. Once an application has been successfully received by the UMGSA Vice-President Academic, all materials 

contained therein will be property of the UMGSA Awards Committee until two (2) months after the close of 
the competition, at which point all materials will be destroyed. 

11. The Vice-President Academic will notify all applicants of the results within five (5) working days of the final 
confirmation provided by the Financial Aid and Awards Office. 

12. The UMGSA shall host an Awards Luncheon where the successful applicants for the upcoming academic term 
will be recognized. The UMGSA invites UMGSA Award winners to present the developments in their research 
at the Awards Luncheon. 

 
III. Emergency Grant 

1. The UMGSA annually provides an Emergency Grants budget line for students who require 
assistance through its Emergency Grants (“Grants”) Program. 

2. The Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) will administer the Grants program on behalf of the 
UMGSA. 

3. Emergency grants are available only to Graduate students currently registered in both their 
home faculties and in FGS. 

4. Applicants will be awarded no more than $200 within an academic year or the amount 
requested, whichever is lower. 

5. Successful recipients will be contacted within 5-7 days by the UMGSA. 
6. Grant applicants should complete the UMGSA Emergency Assistance Grant Application 

Forms administered at the UM Food Bank. 
7. This policy will be reviewed annually or as required by the Bylaws committee. 
8. A memorandum of understanding (MOU) will be entered between UMGSA and FGS to guide 

the implementation of this policy. 
9. FGS and UMGSA will update its Graduate Financial Support web pages with information 

about this joint initiative. 
10. The MOU can be reviewed by either parties annually or as needed. 

 

 

Article XIII: HSGSA Finances and Transfers 

1. All HSGSA honoraria are paid through the UMGSA, as outlined in Article VI of the Bylaws. 
2.  The HSGSA shall receive thirty percent (30%) of the UMGSA operating budget fees collected by the 

UMGSA from HSGSA members. The formula for this calculation would reflect the number of HSGSA 
students (H) registered within the semester multiplied by the student fees collected from HSGSA 
members (F) multiplied by thirty percent (30%) [(H)x(F)x(0.3)]. The allocation will be distributed in 
two equal payments annually during the second and fourth quarter of each year. If a motion is put 
forward and seconded by any member of UMGSA/HSGSA to review the allocation amount, then a joint 
meeting of the UMGSA/HSGSA Bylaws committees will take place at least one month prior to a 
UMGSA General Meeting. 

3. All departments under the purview of the HSGSA must submit applications to the HSGSA for 
Departmental Grants. 

a. All HSGSA departments are subject to the same guidelines and expectations outlined in the 
“Finance” section of this document. 

i. All HSGSA Departments can fulfill their Council and Committee requirements 
through attendance at and participation on HSGSA Council and Committees. 

b. The HSGSA shall evaluate the applications and HSGSA Council shall have the right of 
approval for all HSGSA Departmental Grant applications. 

c. Once approved by the HSGSA, the list of successful applicants will be presented to the 
UMGSA Council for concurrence without debate. 

d. All approved Departmental Grants will be dispersed through the UMGSA Office. 

 

 

Article XIV: Funds and Reserves 



58 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

I. Retained Earnings Fund 
1. The UMGSA shall establish and maintain a Retained Earnings Fund. The Fund shall be used to 

ensure the continued operation of the UMGSA during periods of financial hardship. The UMGSA 
shall borrow from the Retained Earnings Fund as necessary for approved budgeted purposes, but 
shall repay such funds when financially viable. 

2. The Retained Earnings Fund need not be an established fund outside of the UMGSA’s regular 
checking account. However, when financially viable the UMGSA may choose to invest the 
retained earnings fund in secured, short-term investments (one year or less). However, the first 
$50,000 of the fund must remain liquid at all times, with each additional $50,000 investment, or 
portion thereof, mature every three months. 

3. The UMGSA shall budget a minimum of 2% of its annual budget for the Retained Earnings Fund. 
In addition, the UMGSA shall add all annual budget surpluses to the Fund. 

4. The retained earnings fund shall be carried over from year to 
year, but not counted as part of a general surplus or deficit of 
the UMGSA in the year-end financial statement. 

5. The Retained Earnings Fund shall be reported separately 
from the budget as an appendix. 

6. The Retained Earnings Fund must be reviewed when the 
annual budget is debated and amended. 

7. The Retained Earnings Fund shall be administered by the 

Finance Committee. 
8. The UMGSA may, on approval from Council, add non-

budgeted income to the retained earnings fund. 
9. The Retained Earnings Fund is not to exceed the largest 

annual budget recorded in the previous five fiscal years. 
10. Any use of the Retained Earnings Fund for non-

budgeted expenses shall be presented to Council, 
and can only be approved with a two-thirds 
majority. 

 

II. Capital Fund 
1. The annual financial contribution of each UMGSA council shall be 2.5% of the annual budget per 

year to the Office Equipment Reserve Fund. 
2. The Capital Fund shall be maintained as part of the general operations bank account of the UMGSA. 
3. The Capital Fund shall be carried over from year to year, but not counted as part of a general surplus 

or deficit of the UMGSA in the year-end financial statement. 

4. The Capital Fund shall be reported separately from the budget as an appendix. 
5. The Capital Fund must be reviewed when the annual budget is debated and amended. 
6. The Capital Fund shall be administered by the Finance Committee.  
7. The Capital Fund is to be used for, but not limited to:  

a. Office furniture for the main UMGSA office 

b. Office computers, printers, faxes for the UMGSA office.  
c. Capital Projects 

8. The Capital Fund is not to be used for: 

a. General revenue of the UMGSA 

b. Office supplies (paper, ink, staples, paint, etc.) 
c. Personal use 

 

III. External Relations Fund 
1. Fees that are collected in respect of possible membership in CFS/-S/-MB may be used toward the reasonable 

costs associated with the process of defending the position of UMGSA regarding membership in the CFS/-

S/-MB until such time that the membership status is officially conceded, in writing, between legal counsels 

of the CFS/-S/-MB, the University of Manitoba, and the UMGSA or determined by the courts, whichever is 

sooner. 

2. Once the issue of membership in the CFS/-S/-MB is finally resolved, the UMGSA membership shall 

determine the use of all remaining fees collected from UMGSA members and held in the External Relations 



59 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Fund. That determination will take place at the first UMGSA General Meeting following the legal resolution 

of the membership status of the UMGSA. 

 

 

Article XV: Audits and Transparency 

1. Audit 
a. The audit will be undertaken on an annual basis by an external accounting body, which will be 

chosen at the preceding AGM. The annual audit will be of the University of Manitoba Graduate 
Students’ Association and the Health Science Graduate Students’ Association as a single financial 
body. 

b. The Finance Committee and Executive Committee will provide all information requested by the 
auditing body, and will receive any and all feedback on behalf of the UMGSA. 

c. All HSGSA documents will be provided by the HSGSA Executive. 
d. The Finance Committee is responsible for summarizing and presenting audit information at the 

following AGM. 
e. All audit documents are available for examination by any member of the UMGSA. 
f. All monthly financial documents, both those submitted to the Finance Committee and those 

submitted to Council, are a matter of public record and can be requested by any member of the 
UMGSA. 

2. Credit Card, Reimbursements and Signatory Restrictions 
a. Only the President, Vice-President Finance and Administration, Vice-President Services and 

Support, and the Vice-President Academic shall have signing authority. 
b. All purchases must have their accompanying receipts and must be submitted to the Office 

Manager within ten (10) working days of the date issued. 
c. The UMGSA shall withhold itself from the practice of using, or implementing, credit cards in its 

name, an employee’s name, or an Executive members’ name, in order to prevent concerns of 
misuse and to keep transparency at its utmost level. 

d. UMGSA Executives, Council members, and employees use their own personal electronic devices 
or other items in the course of their work for the UMGSA at their own discretion; accordingly, 
they are not permitted to seek reimbursement from the UMGSA for any costs relating to the 
personal items used, including but not limited to personal computers, laptops, data storage 
devices, and mobile devices. 

e. The UMGSA will not re-issue stale-dated cheques. 

 

 

Article XVI: UMGSA-Sponsored Travel 

1. General Regulations: 

a. Executive members who are travelling between Fort Garry and Bannatyne Campus, as 

well as between UMGSA offices to external meetings may claim reimbursement for 

travel costs, including mileage and parking. Costs will not be reimbursed if the 

Executive member is traveling from home to the University of Manitoba campus and 

its affiliate campuses. 

b. The UMGSA on occasion may send delegates to related conferences including 

conferences held on student leadership and student government. 

c. Delegates of these conferences that are representatives of the UMGSA are required to 

sign a letter of agreement drafted by the Executive committee prior to travel. 

d. All delegates are expected to follow any established UMGSA Code of Conduct or Code 

of Ethics while attending a sponsored conference. 

e. Delegates will first be selected from Executive and staff members, followed by council 

and committee members, and finally members of the UMGSA. 

f. The number of delegates at any conference will be determined by the funding available 

for external conferences and professional development in the budget. 



60 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

g. Delegates attending these UMGSA-sponsored conferences are required to attend at least 
80% of the conference proceedings. Those failing to attend the minimum must provide a 
written report to council explaining their absence. 

h. If food is provided at the conference, then UMGSA delegates will not be reimbursed for 
additional food or beverages. If the delegate has missed a meal due to conference activities, 
as in travel, or has dietary restrictions not met by the provided food, then the delegate may 
claim receipts for those meals, up to $40 per diem. 

i. Delegates are not permitted to claim any expenses that are not required for attending the 
conference, including but not limited to, personal taxis, car rentals, and bus fare. 

j. Individuals not abiding by this policy, or the letter of agreement will reimburse the 
UMGSA for travel costs, and conference costs, or parts thereof and may not be sponsored 
in the future as determined by the Executive Review Committee. 

k. All delegates must submit a one-page written report at the following council meeting about 
the conference, what they learned or experiences, and how they will use that information 
in the future. 

l. Executive members that do not follow policy will be subject to an immediate review by 
the Executive Review Sub-Committee, which will report to council their findings and 
potential actions. 

m. The UMGSA Executive will give final approval on those selected as attendees representing 
the UMGSA at conferences. 

n. Travel costs paid via the UMGSA must be made refundable to the UMGSA rather than the 
individual representative\All travel bookings are to be made through the UMGSA office. 

o. All representatives must be graduate students of the University of Manitoba or an 
employee of the UMGSA to qualify as representatives of the UMGSA. 

p. A per diem of $40.00/day will be set aside for those travelling on behalf of the UMGSA 
and is only available when meals are not supplied. The suggested division of the 
$40.00/day in per diem is: $10.00 for breakfast, $10.00 for lunch, and $20.00 for dinner. 

q. Tips for transportation as well as meals will not exceed more than 15 per cent of the costs 
for said transportation and/or meal costs. 

 

 

Article XVII: Ethical Purchasing 

1. Definitions: 
a.  “Institution(s)” means all institutions or groupings of institutions that require compliance with 

the Policy for their bulk purchasing, licensing and/or procurement activities. 
b. “Company” refers to the organization from which the UMGSA buys products, subject to the 

parameters of this Policy. 
c. “Supplier” means any natural or legal person who provides [Company] with goods and/or 

services integral to, and utilized in/for, the production of the company’s goods and/or services. 
d. The term “subcontractor” means any natural or legal person who, directly or indirectly, provides 

a supplier with goods and/or services integral to, and utilized in/for, the production of the 
supplier’s and/or [Company]’s goods and/or services. 

e. The term “child” means any person less than 15, unless local minimum age law stipulates a 
higher age for work or mandatory schooling, or less than 14 if minimum wage law is set at that 
age in accordance with developing country exceptions under ILO Convention 138 enforced. 

f. The term “basic needs” are wages, which are obtained through collective bargaining and meet 
local standards. In the absence of free collective bargaining, wages that meet “basic needs” 
should be defined as wages paid for a normal 48 work week that are sufficient by local standards 
to provide for the food, clothing, housing, health care, potable water, child care, education, 
sanitation, and transportation needs of the worker and his/her dependents. In defining wages that 
meet basic needs, factors that should be taken into account include the average number of 
dependents and the average number of wage earners per family. 

g. The term “local” refers to businesses, which produce and manufacture their goods within 60km 
of the City of Winnipeg. 

h. The term “fair trade” refers to businesses or organizations which pay workers a premium price 
for their products, support the rights of workers to organize, invest in social programs in the 
community of production and who produce products in a developing nation. 



61 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

2. Application: 
a. This policy is to be used for the purchase of all goods possible, unless the cost of non-

ethical goods is cheaper by 10% or more. 
b. This policy should be read as a policy internal to the UMGSA as well as a guide for our 

business partners. 
c. This policy is to be implemented, enforced and reviewed by the finance committee of the 

UMGSA. 
3. Labour Standards: all companies, suppliers and subcontractors involved in the production and/or 

distribution of products for retail or wholesale shall ensure that: 
a. Forced Labour 

i. There shall be no use of forced labour, whether in the 
form of involuntary prison labour, indentured labour, 
bonded labour or otherwise. 

ii. Workers shall not be required to lodge financial 
deposits or their original identity papers with their 
employers. 

b. Discrimination 
i. There shall be no discrimination in hiring, compensation, access to training, 

promotion, termination or retirement based on (but not limited to) age, race, 
caste, nationality, ethnicity, sex, pregnancy, religion, disability, gender, 
marital status, sexual orientation, union membership, illness, or political 
affiliation. 

c. Harassment or Abuse 
i. Physical, sexual or psychological abuse, or verbal harassment or 

abuse, including the use of corporal punishment, shall not be 
tolerated. 

d. Hours of Work 
i. Personnel shall not be required on a regular basis to work in excess of 48 hours per week, and 

shall be provided with at least one day off for every seven-day period. 
ii. Overtime work (more than 48 hours per week) shall be voluntary, shall not exceed 12 hours 

per employee per week, will not be requested other than in exceptional and short-term business 
circumstances, and will always be remunerated at a premium rate. 

e. Freedom of Association and the Right to Bargain Collectively 
i. Workers, without distinction, shall have the right to join or form trade unions of their own 

choosing and to bargain collectively. 
ii. Employers shall not hinder or interfere with any attempts of the workers to organize a trade 

union. Where the right to freedom of association and collective bargaining is restricted under 
law, the employer will allow, and will not hinder, the development of parallel means for 
independent and free association and bargaining. 

iii. Workers’ representatives shall not be the subject of discrimination and shall have access to all 
workplaces necessary to enable them to carry out their representation functions. 

iv. Workers’ representatives shall have complete access to membership lists and other necessary 
documents. 

v. Employers are encouraged to recognize workers’ organizations succession rights were national 
or provincial/state law is not present. 

vi. Business shall be encouraged to unionize new shops, if workers at an existing shop are 
unionized. 

f. Wages and Other Compensation 
i. Wages and benefits paid for a standard working week shall meet, at a minimum, national legal 

standards or industry benchmark standards; whichever is higher. 
ii. In any event wages paid for a standard working week should be sufficient by local standards 

to provide for the food, clothing, housing, health care, potable water, child care, education, 
sanitation, and transportation needs of the worker and his/her dependents. 

iii. Wages will be paid in a timely manner directly to the employee in cash, cheque or the 
equivalent. All workers shall be provided with written and understandable information about 
their employment conditions with respect to wages before they enter employment, and of the 
particulars of their wages for the pay period concerned each time that they are paid. 
Deductions from wages for disciplinary measures shall not be permitted, nor shall any 



62 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

deductions from wages not provided for by national law be permitted without the expressed 
permission of the worker concerned. 

iv. Employers are strongly encouraged to provide safe, adequate childcare facilities for their 
workers. 

v. Employers are strongly encouraged to allow 11/2 sick days per month per employee, at no 
loss of income to the employee. 

vi. Equal work for equal pay policies are to be practiced by the employer. 
vii. Employers are strongly encouraged to have a diverse management staff. 

g. Pricing and Timelines 
i. Suppliers and licensees shall ensure that prices negotiated for work performed are sufficient to 

allow for compliance with this code. In addition, the supplier or licensee shall ensure that 
realistic production timelines are provided to Contractors and homeworkers to comply with 
this policy. 

h. Health and Safety 
i. A safe hygienic working environment shall be provided, bearing in mind the prevailing 

knowledge of the industry and of any specific hazards. 
ii. Access to clean toilet facilities and to potable water and, if appropriate, sanitary facilities 

for food storage shall be provided. 
iii. Where workers are handling hazardous materials, safety showers shall be provided and 

accessible at all times in case of an accident. 
iv. Accommodation, where provided, shall be clean, safe and meet the basic needs of the 

workers. 
v. Safe handling information and training shall be provided regularly for relevant tasks, 

materials and equipment. 
vi. Appropriate and sufficient first aid supplies shall always be on site. Trained medical 

professionals shall be readily available to administer first aid, deal with emergencies and 
treat workers’ occupational health problems. 

vii. Fire exits and fire extinguishers should be mandatory in all buildings including housing. 
viii. Building must be kept up with the local and/or national building codes. 

i. Employment Relationship 
i. To every extent possible work performed must be on the basis of recognized employment 

relationship established through national law and practice. 
ii. Obligations to employees under labour and social security laws and regulations arising from 

the regular employment relationship shall not be avoided through the use of labour-only 
contracting, or through apprenticeship schemes where there is no real intent to impart skills or 
provide regular employment, nor shall any such obligations be avoided through the excessive 
use of fixed-term contracts of employment. 

iii. Employers shall keep adequate records of their employees’ names, addresses, rate of pay and 
number of hours worked each week in order to make this information available for monitoring 
purposes. 

iv. Employers are discouraged from closing a plant/shop in a location to relocate a shop due to 
cheaper labour or looser government regulations.  

j. Reproductive Rights 
i. No employee or prospective employee shall be subjected to the involuntary use of 

contraceptives or pregnancy testing. 
ii. Workers will be permitted to take family leave without facing threat of dismissal, loss 

of seniority or deduction in wages, and shall be able to return to their former 
employment at the same rate of pay and benefits. 

iii. Maternity/parental leave is strongly encouraged in the absence of a national or 
provincial/state law or program. 

k. Child Labour 
i. There shall be no use of child labour, i.e. no person shall be employed at an age younger than 

15 (or 14, where, consistent with International Labour Organization practices for developing 
countries, the law of the country of manufacture allows for such an exception). 

ii. Where the age for completing compulsory education is higher than the standard for the 
minimum age of employment stated above, the higher age for completing compulsory 
education shall apply to this section. 

iii. Adequate transitional economic assistance and appropriate educational opportunities shall be 
provided to any displaced (as a result of the enforcement of this policy) child workers. 



63 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

l. Homeworkers 
i. Homeworkers shall be given reasonable quotas such that the volume can be met in a regular 

workweek and the piece rate or other form of remuneration shall constitute a living wage. 
ii. Homeworkers shall be allowed to join and participate in workers’ support organizations of 

their own choosing. 
iii. The employer shall provide training in relevant matters of occupational health and safety to 

homeworkers. 
iv. The other provisions of this policy shall also apply to homeworkers. 

4. Environment Standards 

a. Location 
i. The UMGSA shall attempt to give priority to producers, manufacturers and service providers 

who are locally based. 
ii. The UMGSA shall attempt to purchase products directly from their producers. 

b. Material 
i. The UMGSA shall attempt to buy products where the material used is biodegradable and/or 

recyclable where applicable. 
c. Pollution 

i. The UMGSA shall attempt to purchase products from environmentally consciences and 
sustainable producers and suppliers. 

ii. Local standards for water, air, and land pollution should be met. 

5. Certification Standards 

a. Environmental 
i. The UMGSA shall attempt to seek products carrying the eco-logo certification. 
ii. The UMGSA shall attempt to purchase organic foods, which carry organic certification. 

b. Social Justice 
i. The UMGSA shall attempt to seek fair-trade or certified fair-trade products, with particular 

reference to coffee, sugar, tea, chocolate, and textiles. 
ii. The UMGSA shall not purchase goods from businesses on the Canadian Labour Congress’s 

boycott list.  



64 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

CLUBS 
 

 

Article XVIII: Preamble 

The purpose of this policy is to uphold the interests of club members, students, the UMGSA/HSGSA, and the 

University community. This document is designed to assist graduate students in the formation, operation, and 

development of clubs and to make clear the obligations that a club has to the UMGSA/HSGSA. 

 

 

Article XIX: Definitions 

1. “Club” means a UMGSA/HSGSA recognized club; 

2. “Club Member” includes any individual who is a recognized member of a UMGSA ratified club; 

3. “Student” includes any graduate student enrolled at the University of Manitoba or its affiliate campuses. 

 

 

Article XX: Review of UMGSA/HSGSA Clubs 

1. All recognized UMGSA/HSGSA clubs will be assessed by the Vice-President Services and Support and the 

Events Committee. 

2. The Events Committee, will be required to assess the standing of each UMGSA club at the meeting held 

previously to the April UMGSA/HSGSA Council Meetings. 

3. Items to be reviewed include but are not limited to: what the club has accomplished during the ‘fiscal year,’ events 

held, budget, as well as contact information for the incoming Club executive. 

4. The onus is on the club to provide all necessary information to the appropriate body or individual described above 

for review. 

 

 

Article XXI: Application for Recognition as a UMGSA/HSGSA 

Club 

1. The following will be the deadlines for submitting new club applications: 

a. October 15 

b. February 15 

c. June 15 

2. The Events Committee will evaluate applications for UMGSA/HSGSA Clubs and recommend their approval to 

the UMGSA Executive. 

3. UMSU Clubs that have more than 25% of their memberships as Graduate Students will be recognized by the 

UMGSA/HSGSA. 

4. Academically organized Clubs will be given priority for recognition. 

 

 

  



65 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article XXII: Requirements for Ratification 

1. A student group/club proposing recognition/ratification by the UMGSA must provide evidence that: 

a. Its membership is open to graduate students. 

b. If the club chooses to open its membership to non-UofM students as well, the non-student members are 

not granted voting rights. Clubs that choose to enlist the help of staff members shall not permit those 

staff members to have voting rights. 

c. If it is a recognized UMSU club that is requesting UMGSA/HSGSA recognition they must provide 

proof that graduate students comprise at least 25% of the total membership. 

d. A list of 10 graduate students, with signatures and student identification number, must be presented – 

exceptions, with proof of why 10 signatures were not represented, can be considered by the Events 

Committee. 

2. A Proposal for recognition/ratification must be submitted to the Vice-President Services and Support. The 

proposal must include: 

a. A one (1) page cover letter stating the desire to be ratified/recognized and signed, with contact 

information, of at least two (2) representatives for the organization looking to be ratified/recognized. 

b. A typed, maximum three (3) pages, proposal answering: 

a. What is the Purpose of the Club? 

b. What Activities will the Club hold? 

c. How will the club be financially organized and how will monies be allocated? 

d. What are some liability issues that the club may face? 

c. A typed copy of the proposed constitution for the club that: 

i. Adheres to the UMGSA Bylaws; 

ii. States clearly that its views and actions in no way represent the UMGSA/HSGSA, or the 

University of Manitoba; 

iii. Clearly includes: 

1. Name of Club 

2. Mandate 

3. Membership 

4. Membership fees 

5. Executive Positions 

6. Executive Duties/Responsibilities 

7. Meetings 

8. Election Procedures 

9. Refund Policy 

10. Amendments 

11. Impeachment (abiding by UMGSA impeachment process) 

12. Signing Officers 

13. An agency clause. 

 

 

Article XXIII: Appeals 

1. In the event that a club is not ratified/recognized, the club can appeal the decision to the Events Committee. 

 

 

  



66 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article XXIV: Club Rights 

1. A club is entitled to access certain UMGSA services, and the right to: 

a. Be listed as a recognized UMGSA club on the UMGSA website. 

b. Seek a reservation for the UMGSA Lounge. 

c. Have the UMGSA contact the general graduate student body, via the UMGSA newsletter, about a club’s 

1st Annual General Meeting and events. 

d. Apply for ‘Donations’ from the UMGSA, as outlined in the “Finance” section of this document. 

 

 

Article XXV: Club Responsibilities 

1. Verifying by September 10th, each year that there is an up-to-date Constitution filed with the USC Office 

2. Submitting a final report to the Events Committee by 1 April which includes: 

a. A summary and evaluation of club activities that have occurred during that year 

b. A copy of the minutes from the club’s Annual General Meeting 

c. A detailed report on finances including a statement of revenue and expense for the fiscal year 

d. A list of incoming executives with their names, student numbers, and email address 

 

 

Article XXVI: Elections 

1. All UMGSA-recognized clubs are expected to adhere to the UMGSA Election and Referendum Manual. 

2. All UMSU-recognized clubs, that have also obtained recognition from the UMGSA, must adhere to UMSU 

election rules first and foremost due to recognition through UMSU. 

3. A CRO shall be elected to oversee the Club’s election but will not be financially compensated by the UMGSA. 

 

 

Article XXVII: Finances 

1. It is expected for all clubs to adhere to all legal accounting policies and procedures. 

2. All clubs are to keep a detailed budget for the club and to be submitted to the Events Committee no later than the 

end of October. 

3. A member may apply to his or her club for a refund if a fee is paid within one month of becoming a member of 

the club. 

4. The UMGSA will not subsidize recognized clubs financially (donation requests are encouraged, which is outlined 

in the “Finance” section of this document). 

5. Two (2) signatures will be required for all financial transactions of a UMGSA-recognized club. 

 

 

Article XXVIII: Trade-Mark Use 

1. A club must seek approval from the UMGSA, UMSU, and/or the University of Manitoba in using any logos 

pertaining to them 

 
 

  



67 

Documents for the November 28th 2018 UMGSA Council Meeting 

Article XXIX – Club Insurance & Risk Management 

1. The UMGSA will not be held accountable for any possible risk that clubs may have if they choose to host 

events that may require additional insurance, including but not limited to pub crawls, socials, et al. 

2. Clubs have the responsibility to take all necessary precautions to limit liability while hosting or participating in 

high-risk events or activities, including UMSAFE for alcohol events. 

3. The Club members with signing authority are expected to sign a waiver acknowledging that they have read and 

will abide by the “Clubs” section of this document as well as the UMGSA’s Code of Conduct. 

 

 

Article XXX: Removal of Club Members 

1. A club must remove a member of the club if that member is found to have violated the club’s constitution in 

such a way that removal is warranted 

2. Removal of any member of the club, including executive, must follow the outlined impeachment process that is 

within the club Constitution 

3. Appeal can be brought to the Events Committee if there is reason to believe that the impeachment process was 

not properly followed. 

 

 

Article XXXI: Club Sanctions and/or De-Ratification 

1. Clubs can be sanctions or de-ratified for the following reasons: 

a. Breach of any of the responsibilities outlined in this policy. 

b. If the club has been idle for a full fiscal year. 

2. The process for sanctions or de-ratification will include: 

a. Verbal warning from the Events-Committee will be the first avenue of choice. 

b. Written warning via the Vice-President Services and Support on behalf of the Events Committee if the 

problem persists after the verbal warning.  

c. Sanction or de-ratification if the problem persists after the written warning and will be decided by the 

events committee. 

 

 


